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39th Annual Report

NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the 36% Annual General Meeting of Members of Key Corp Limited will be held
on Tuesday, the 15th July, 2025 at 10:00 a.m. at the Regislered Office of the Company at 1816-A, Civil
Lines, Kanpur ta transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at 31st
March, 2025, together with Directors Report and Audilors Report thereon,

2. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Mukul Agt;annfal (DIN 00234982) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Toappoint Auditors and fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to
pass the following resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant te provisions of section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being In force) and pursuant to
recommendation of Audit Cammittee and the Board of Directors Mfs. V.P. Aditya & Campany,
Chartered Accountant (Registration Mo, D00S542C) be and is hereby appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company on a remuneration of Rs.55 000/- {Rupees Fifty Five Thousand only).

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and Is authorized to do

all such act, deeds, mattars and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to
give affect 1o this resalution”,

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

4, Appointment of Ms. Lavisha Agarwal (DIN 11064186}

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resclutions as
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Ms. Lavisha Agarwal (DIN 11084188) who has been appointed as an
additional Independent Women Director by the Board of Director with effect from 13.05.2025 in
terms of section 161 of the Companies Act 2013 and Article 26 of the Article of Assaclation of the
Company and whose term of office expires at the Annual General Mesting and in terms of whom
the campany has received a natice in writing from the mamber proposing her candidature for the
office of the director be and Is hereby appainted as an Independent women director of the
company not liable to retire by retation for a term of five consecutive years

5. Re-appointment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari (DIN 00235209) as a Whole Time Director.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolutions as
Special Resolution;

"“RESCLVED THAT pursuant fo provisions of the companies act and all cother applicable
provislons if any of the companies act 2013 or any other modifications or re-enactment theracf
and subject to such approvals as may be necessary the company hereby accords its consent and
approval to the re-appeintment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari as whole time Director of the Company
with the designation "Executive Director” for a period of § Years with effect fram this Annual
General Meeting.

Regd, Office By Crder of the Board
16/16-A, Civll Lines,
Kanpur—208 001

CIN - L65821 UP1985 PLCOO7547 G.D. Mahashwari
Web Site: keycorpltd.com Executive Direclor
E-mail; keycorpltd. @gmail.com (DIN 00235209)

Phone: 8604627809

CERTIFIED TO BE A Ti{{t‘z COPY
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NOTES:

A member entitled to attend and vate is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vole instead of
himself and the proxy need not be & member, A proxy form duly completed and signed should be
depositad at the Registerad Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the commeancement
of the mesting i ;

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
ath July, 2025 to 15 July, 2025 (both days inclusive).

Members wha are holding shares in identical order of names in more than cne folic ara
requested to write to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company for consalidation of
their halding In ane folio,

Members sre reguested to Inform the changes, if any, in their registered addresses 1o the
Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company Mfs. ABS Consultants Pyt Lid, 98, Stephen House,
&th Floor, 4, B.B.D. Bag (E), Kolkata-700 001.

.Dr. Mukul Agarwal (DIN 00234962) aged 59 years retres by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeling. He holds Master Degree in Commerce and Ph.D. in Merchant Banking -and
Development in India. He has 33 years’ experience in Finance sarvices and Industry and has
successfully established himself as an exporter. He s Director in Mathura Investment Pyt. Ltd,,
Kals Tex Pvt. Ltd., Hilman Tex Pvt. Ltd. and Mudra Steel Pvt. Ltd.

fiembears seeking any information with regard to the asccounts of the company are reguested to
wrile to the company at its Registered Office, so as to reach at least 10 days hefore the date of
the meeting to enable the Management to keep the infarmation ready.

tMembers who hold shares in PhysicallDematerialized Form are. requested to bring their Folio
No/Depository Account Number and cllent 1D Number for Identification,

Pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agresment relating {o Corporate Governance, the particulars
of Directors proposed to ba appointed or re-appointed are given in the report on Corporate
Governance attached to the Directors Report.

In terms of Section 107 and 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Compahies (Managemeant
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is providing its members the facility to exercise
their right to vote by electronic means on any of all of the businesses specified In the
sccompanying Motice, Necessary arrangements have been made by the Company with Central
Depository Services Ltd. ("CDSL") to facilitale remota e-voting. Remote e-voling is optional and
members shall have the option to vote either through remote e-voting or in person at the Gengral
Meating through Ballot or Polling paper.

“oting rights shall be rackoned on the paid-up value of shares registered In the name of the
member/beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-aff date lLe.
Bt July, 2025,

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of member or In the reagister of beneficial awner
maintained by the depositorias as on cul-cff date L.e. 8ih July, 2025 only shall be entitied io avail
the facility of remote e-voting/voting through ballot or paolling paper at the mesling.

The instructiens for shareholders voting electronically are as under:

The voting period begins on 12.07.2025 =t 8.00 AM, and ends on 14.07.2025 at 5.00 P.M.
During this period shargholders of the Company, holding shares either in physleal form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e., Bth July, 2025, may cast their vole electronically.
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafler.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
Click on *Shareholders”.
Mow anter your user ID.

a) For CDSL: 16 digils beneficiary 1D,

BY FEor NSOL: 8 character OP ID followed by 8 digits Clisnt 1D,

o) Members holding shares in physical form should enter folio number registered with the
Company.

taxt enter the image verification as displayed and Click on “Login'.

# you are holding shares in Demat form and had legged on (o www.evolingindia.com and
vo'=d on an earlisr voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used,

¥ you = a first time user follow the steps given below:- @ERTIFIED TO BE 4 . “UE CcoPY

For Key %c_:\rp Lid,

2 (V. K\{fl Pandey)
Joint Secratary
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| For Members hrl:sldtng shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Deparment
(applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholder)

« Members who have not updated their PAN with the company/depository
participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8
digits of the Sequence Number in the PAN fleld.

+ In case the seguence number is less than B digits enter the applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first two charactars of the name
In capital letter. Eg. If your name |5 Heera Singh with seguence number 1
then enter HEQOOO0001 In the PAN field.

DoB « Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the
= campany records for the said damat account or folio in dd!mmiyyyy format.
Dividend » Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in
Bank the Company recerds for the said demat account or folie.

Details » Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank details In order to login. If the

details are not recorded with the Depository or the Company, please enter
the member |D/Folic number In the dividend bank details fiald as
mentioned in instructions (iv).

VIl After entering these detalls appropriately click on “SUBMIT" tab,

1%, Members holding shares in physical farm will then reach directly the company selection scraen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach “Password Creation” menu
whergin they are required to mandatorily enter their login password In the new password field.
Kindly note that this passward s to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
perscn and take utmost care to keep yeur password confidentlal.

#. For Members holding shares In physical form, the detsils can be used only for e-voling on the
resolutions contained In this Notice,

Al Click on the EVSN for the relevant “company name” on which you choose to vote,

Xl On the voting page, you will see "“RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the
option "YES/MO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that
you assent to the Resolution and option NG implies that you dissent to the Resclution,

Xl Click on the "RESOLUTION FILE LINK® if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.

AV, ARer selecting the resolution you have decided to vole on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK", else to change your vole,
click en “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

AV, Once you "CONFIRM" your vole on the resclution, you will not be allowed to modify your vate,

A1 You can aiso take print out of the veting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” aplion
on the Voling page.

XV If demat account halder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User 1D and image
verification Code and click on Forgot Password & enter the detalls as prompted by the system,

XML Non individuals shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI eic.) and custodian are
required to log on to hitpsiiiwww.evetingindla,com and register themsealves as Corporates. A
scanned copy of tha registration form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be e-mailad

to helpdesk.evotingsindia.com.
CERLIFIED.TO BE A TRUE CO¥3
~or Key Corp f_tci

(V. KiPandey)
Joint Secretary




XIX. After recelving the login details 2 compliance user should be created using the admin login and
password. The compliance user would be able to link the accounts for which they wish to vote
an.

¥X. The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdusk.evoting@cdslindla.com and on approval of
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

¥xl. A scanned copy of the Board resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have lssued in
favour of custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

¥XI, In case you haué any gueries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
- Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section
or write an email to helpdesk.wuting@cdslindia.uum.

¥Xill. The Company has appointed Mrs. Ratna Tewari, Kanpur a Practicing Company Secretary (C.P.
No. 19765 as the Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner.

XXIV. A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the websita of cCDsL.

%XV, In case of Members who are entitled to vole but have not exercised their right 1o vote by
electronic means, the facility of ballot paper or palling paper shall be made available at the
meeting.

Eor apundant clarity, piease note that the Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voling
prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but <hall not be entitied to cast thelr vole again.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity shars
capital of the Company. The poll process shall be conducted and scrutinized and report therson
will be prepared in accordance with Section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,

Regd. Office ! By Order of the Board
18/16-A, Civil Lines,
Kanpur — 208 001
G.0. Maheshwari
Executive Director
Dated : 13.05.2025 (DINDO235208)
Place ; Kanpur
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE cOPY
For Key Corp Ltd.

(V. Ki Pa dey?

doint Secretarny
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 on item no.4,
and 5.

i

Regd. Office | o

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed Ms. Lavisha Agarwal (DIN 11064186) aged about
34 years as an additional director (non-executive, independent women director) in place of Ms. Manju
Jain whose tenure will expire on ensuing Annual Gensral Meeting with effect from 13.05.2025 in
accordance with the provisions of section 161 of the Companies Act 2013 and Article 95 of the Article
of Association of the Company to hold office up to the Annual General Meeting. In terms of saction
148 and 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 Ms. Lavisha Agarwal
being eligible offer herself for appointment is propesed to be appointed as women Independent
Diréctor for five consecutive years till raspective Annual General Meeting. Notice has been received
from a member proposing her candidature for the office of Director of the Company.

In the cpinion of the Board Ms, Lavisha Agarwal fulfill the conditions specified in companies act 2013
and rules framed thereunder for her appeintment as an women independent director of the company
and Is Independent of Management. The resume of Ms. Lavisha Agarwal is given below pursuant to
clause 48 of the Listing Agreement,

Ms. Lavisha Agarwal holds the degree of commerce and is Practicing Chartered Accountant (FCA).
She has more than 7 years of experience in accounts, audit and taxation. She is Partner in M/s. Vivek
Khanna & Company Charlered Accountants,

Whole time Director Shri G.D. Maheshwari aged about 67 years have completed his five years as
executive director. As per companies act and other applicable provisions of the companies act 2013,
shri G.D. Maheshwari being eligible and offering himself for re-appointment are proposed to be re-
appointed as whole time director of the Company. In opinien of the Board Shri G.D. Maheshwari fulfill
the conditions specified in companies act 2013 and rules framed thereunder for his re-appointment as
whaole time director of the company. The resume of Shri G.D. Maheshwari Is given below pursuant to
clause 49 of the listing agreement.

Shri G.D. Maheshwari holds Master Degree in Commerce. He holds experience in secondary market
and accounts. He is not directly Interested In any other company. He is holding the position of
Executive Director sines 1% Oclober, 2023,

The nomination and remuneration committee of the Board of Director has recommended the

continuation of sppointment of Shri G.D. Maheshwari as Executive Director of the Company
considering his experience.

By Order of the Board

16/18-A, Civil Lines,
Kanpur — 208 001

CIN - L65921 UP1985 PLCOOTS47
Web Site: keycorpltd.com

E-mail: keycorpltd. @gmail.com
Phone: 8604627808

Place: Kanpur
Dated :13.05.2025

G.D. Maheshwari
Director
(DIN 00235209)

CERTIFLE!) i BE A TIiT::E COPY
rp Lid.

For Key E
(V. K! Pan(lr:ﬂ

Jaint Secretary




CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE TO STAKEHOLDERS

Dear Stakeholders,
It gives me immense pleasure to share my views with our valued stakeholders on the
3g" Annual Report for the year 2024-25.

| am pleased to report that during the year 2024-25 your Company has delivered good
financial performance.

During the year 2024-25 company has executed Loan business fo the tune of
Rs. 102.40 lacs as compared to Rs.101.80 lacs in the previous year. The Company is
concentrating utilizing surplus funds in mutual fund schemes.

PRESENT ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND PROSPECTS:

As of 2025, India’s economic landscape is marked by moderate but stable growth, with
GDP projected to expand by 6.1% to 7,2% supported by robust domestic demand and
favorable government policies. The expansion of India's GDP is primarily driven by
strong domestic consumption and policy support through tax cuts and monetary easing.
FDI inflows are strong rising by 27% due to liberalized policies, sectoral reforms and
investors friendly regulation.

Despite the positive domestic indicators India faces several external challenges. Rising
trade tensions, particularly due to increased tariffs from the U.S., and geopolitical
uncertainties pose risk to exports and investor confidence. Nevertheless, strang
domestic drivers such as consumption growth, infrastructure development and digital
economy continue to support econemic momentum.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Before | conclude, on behalf of the Board of Directors and on my own behalf, | would
like to express my gratitude to our stakeholders and staff for their faith in our abilities to
continuously improve our working.

CERTIFIED 70O BE \ TRUE COPY

For Key ﬁrﬁ Ltd.-
*kk N et
(V. F‘an:[:'e;'}

Joint Secretary
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2,

a}

)

c}

)

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
1

Your directors present the 39th Annual Report and Audited Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2025.

{Rs.in lakhs)

FINANCIAL RESULTS 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Income from Operations 36.80 3247
Income from Investment in Mutual Funds 474,44 3196.61
Other Income 0.76 0.09
Less :Operating Expenditure 75.54 67.30
Pmﬂt'Eefﬂre Depraciation 436.46 3161.87
Less :Depreciation 5.56 6.10
Met Frofit for the Year before tax 430.90 3156.77
Less: Provisions for Income Tax 0,00 0.00
Add : Provision for Deferred Tax 0.94 0.34
Prafit after tax 431.84 315711
Balance of Profit brought forward 745185 4294.74
Amaount Available for appropriation 431,84 315711
afier adjustments

APPROPRIATIONS TO:-

General Reserve 0.00 00.00
Statutory Reserve Fund 0.00 0.00
Balance Carried over 7883.69 7451.85
DIVIDEND

In order to bulld up resources your Directors do not recommend payment of dividend for the
Financial Year 2024-25

PERFORMANCE
Looking to the highly competitive market scenario, your Company has dane well. Your Campany

is investing the Surplus Funds in mutual fund schemes to augment income.
DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provision of section 152 of the Companies Ast, 2013 and the Companies
Articles of Association, Dr. Mukul Agarwal, Director retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointmeant.

Ms. Manju Jain (DIN 00338934) having completed her tenure for 10 years will cease from the
diractorship on the conclusion of AGM, The Board places on records ils appreciation for her services
rendered to the company as women director,

Ms. Lavisha Agarwal (DIN 11064188) was appointed as additional director on 13.05.2025 in terms
of section 161 of the Companies Act 2013, She Is appointed as women director in place of

Ms. Manju Jain whose tenure will expire from AGM, Ms. Lavisha Agarwal holds cffice up to the date
of ansuing Annual General Meeting.

Further the Board appraised the performance of the independent directors: and found their
contribution to the proceedings of the Board beneficial for the Company. They have attended
almost all the Board meetings and Committee meetings held from lime to time. Further, the
indapendgnt directors have given a dec!gratiun that they mest the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, ARRTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY

—

(V. KI Pamdey)
Joint Secretary
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15,

17.

18.

19.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

The Present Auditors M/s. V.P. Aditya & Company, Chartered Accountant (Registration MNeo.
000542C) will retire from their office at the ensuing General Meeting. They have confirmed their
gligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed limits
under the Act and that they are not disqualified for re-appointment. You are requested to
consider their appointment. The qualifications in the Audilors Report is self explanatory and has
been described in the Notes on Account,

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR

The Practicing Company Secretary has given a certificate that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as a directors of Companies by the Board/MCA or any such siatutory authority.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees getting salary in excess of the limil as specified under the provision of
sectign 187(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company has no activities relating to conservation of enargy or technology absorption. Thara
is na foreign exchange earning and outgo during the year.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE
The Companies shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai.

The Company's shares are marketable in Demat mode only. Shareholders are requested to
convert their physical shareholding into Demat made.

FINE LEVIED BY BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.
The Stock Exchange levied fine a totaling of of Rs.8,260/- under Regulation 28(2), 28(3) and

23(9) Rs.2,360- under Regulation 24(A). The Company has deposited the same on 01.01.2025
and 14.11.2024.

INCOME TAX PROCEEDINGS
Company's assessmeants are completed upto the assessment year 2024-25

AUDIT COMMITTEE
During the year the Committee held four meetings.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
During the year the committee hald four meetings.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
During the year the committee held four meetings.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIEBILITY

Althaugh the net profit at the close of the financial year is arrived st Rs.43185092.00 but it
includes notional gain of Rs.44108449.00 on account of market valuation of investment which Is
not to be considered for the purposes of CSR as per section 158 of the Companies Act, 2013,
This Company s not covered under CSR obligation as the profit is below Rs, 5.00 crore.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Clause 49 of the Listing Agresment with Siock Exchanges, a report on Corporate
Governance is enclosad as intagral part of the Annual Raport together with the Auditors
Cerlificate In compllance. )

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Interms of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges, Management
Discusslons and Analysis Report forms part of this repart.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Fursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Appeintment & Remuneration and Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 the Company
appointed Ms. Ratna Tewarl, Practicing Company Secretary of Kanpur (CP Membership
Ma. 19765) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for lhe financial year 2024-25. The
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 319, 2025 is annexed to this
report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any gualification, reservation or

adverse remarks. CERTIFIED 10 BE A TRUE COPY
Eor i

-reorr
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20, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Subject to Note Mo. 25 of the Annual Accounts there was no significant transaction of
material nature with the related parties viz Promoters, Directors, Management or relatives
during' the year and the provisions of Section 188 of the Company's Act, 2013 are nat
altracted.

21. REMUNERATION POLICY
The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a frame work in relation to
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The details of this
Fulicy is explained in the Corporate Gavernance Report.

22. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has endeavoured to develop and impiement a risk management policy,
ineorporating and identifying econormic, financial and environmental risks.

23. EVALUATION OF EOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES
The evalugtion of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding
the directors being evaluated. Further, the Board also carried out assessment of its own
performance and that of its committeas based upon eriteria such as performance against set
objectives, contribution to the development of long-term strategy and risk management, level
of communication amongst the Board/Committes members and of the Board/Committes
members with Key Managerial Personnels,

24, MEETING OF THE BEOARD OF DIRECTORS
The details of the member of meetings of the Board held during the financial year 2024-25
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report,

25. CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board of Directors has already adopted a Code of Ethics & Business Conduct for the
Directors and Senlor Managerial Parsonnei.

26. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your directors confirm:
I that in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed and that there were no material departures:

1. that the directors have selectad such accounting policies & applied them consistently and
made judgments & estimates that are reasonable & prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial yaar ended 319
March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for that year;

. that the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting recerds In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safe-guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities;
IV, that the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis!

v, 'lhat the internal financial controls were laid down to be followed and that such internal
financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively;

VI. proper systems were devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and ocperating effectively;

27,  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your directors wish to thanks the emgloyees for their dedication and hard wark.

Place : Kanpur For and on behalf of the Board
Dated : 13.05.2025
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY
For Key Corp Lid. (K.B. AGARWAL)
LQ Chairman
DIM 00339934
(V. K.!Pantey)

Joint Secretary
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND A ALYSIS REPOR

1} STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT:

Your Company is & reglstered NEBFC and is engaged in finance business since Inception from 1986. The Company's
thrust area Is vehicle financing, particularly in old vehicle financa and Investment of Surplus Funds in Mutual Funds,
The Company has developed gxpertise in financing and recovery of its loan and built-up sound porticlio of old
vehicles. The business activities of the Company are mainly concentrated in the State of Uttar Pradash whera it has
found anough BCORE.

1) OPPORTUNITIES AMD THREATS:

With the growth in economy, particularly the service sector, there is ample scope for vehicle financing which is
company’s thrust area. Company has developed expertise during the period of 39 years in financing of used
vehicles, Company looks forward to avail such opportunities by expanding area net-work.

However, as the vehicle financing is a high-risk area, particularly in the rorharn reglon where the company is
aperating, it ks moving forward with caution. Morsover, thera s severs competition from the organized banking gector
particularly, privale sector banks.

Further; the company forasees substantial potentlal in revenue generation from its activity af investing surplus funds
in rmutual funds, which is however subjected to market risks

ill) PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE!

The company is not @ manufacturing company and is engaged only in vehicle financing and Investment in Mutual
Funds. The performance of the company has been satisfactory In the current economic scenarla.

IV} OUTLOOK:
s has been explained above, future business scenario is hopeful,
V) RISKS AND CONCERNS:

Risk is an inherent part of finance business. Your company, however, has taken sfeps in sirengthening the risk

management systems and practices. The company Is continuously monitering the business by dapuling recovery
managers

Vi) INTERMAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The company has adequate Irternal Control System commensurals with the size and nature of its business wikh
regard to finance, recovery and investment.

Vilj OPERATIONAL PERFO RMAMNCE:
Looking to the highly compelitive sconammic conditions, your company has done well and has sscured the business to
tha tunae of Rs.102.40 LACS.

Slgnificant Financial Ratios!
5 Mol Particulars of Ratios 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 | Remarks {In cases of variances of +-25%) |

1. Debtors Turnover Ratio 3192 2723 The increase in ratio is due to the increase in
the trade receivables and interest inCome.

’_ trade recigvables
3

2. Current Ralio 4.57 445 Tha increase in ratio Is dug to the Increase In
the amount of cash and cash equivalents and

Operating Profit Margin -14.35% 15289 | The decrease is due o decline in cperating
income.

!
l

4. Met Profit Margin 84.16% §7.76% | The decrease in the margin i due o decrease
in net proft on fair value changes of
Invastmeants.

Return on Met Worth 6.26% 20.00% | The decrease in the margin is dug lo decrease I
| in net proit on fair value changes of |

!’..II

| investments.

will) HUMAN RESOURCES!

The company has a professional team to control its day to day activities under the guidance of the Executive
Direcior
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RATNA TIWARI
Company Secretary
A peer-reviewed unit
1
A 4] -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2025
Pursuant to Section 204({1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rulé no. 9 of the Companies.
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,”

KEY CORP LIMITED

CiN: L65921UP1985PLC0O07547
16/16-A Civil Lines Kanpur,
Uttar Pradesh, India, 208001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence g
good corporate practice by M/s. KEY CORP LIMITED (CIN; LE5921UP1985PLC007547) (hereinafter callad “The
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corpgrate conducts/statutory mmpiliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that In my opinion, the
Company has, during the year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statulory provisions lsien
hereunder and also that the company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in plice to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recards maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and the rules made thereunder.
il The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder:
i, The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of Regulation

¥6 of SEBI{Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

.  Forelgn Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, {Not applicablc
during the year);

Mobile : 7275562545

E-mail ! csratnatiwani@gmail com
Address : F-3, First Floor, Siddharth
Wilia, 7117, Tilak Nagar, Kanpur
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RATNA TIWARI

Company Secretary
A peer-reviewed unit

The faliowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of Ingia Acl,
19932 ['SEBI Act'}:-

vi.

wii.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Hegulations,
2011, a5 amended from time to tme;

The Sepurities and Exchange Board of India (Probibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, ;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue of Capital and Disclosure Aeguirements) Aegulationg,
1018 {Not applicable to the company during the year), ;

The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Listing Obligations and Disclasure Reguirements) Reguialions
2015; as amended from time to time.

The Securitios and Exchange Board of India |Share Based Employes Benefits and Swoat Tully)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the company during the year)

The Securities and Exchanpe Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 008 (Nat
applicable to the company during the year);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an |ssue and Share Transfer Agents) Ropuiatioes
15493, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client |

The Seeurities and Exchange Board of India |Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Mot applicable
to the company during the year),

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to
the company during the year),

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue and Listing of Non - Convertible Securities] Aegulation,
2021 {(Not applicable to the company during the year);

The Sexual Harassment of Worren at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal] Act, 2013,

Mobile : 7275562845

E-maail ; caratnatiwarif@gmail.com
Address: F-3, First Floor, Siddharth
Vilta, 717, Tllak Magar, Kanpur

(V. K.
Jaint Secraetary
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RATNA TIWARI

Company Secretary
A peer-reviewed unit

During the audit period under review, there were no specific laws which were exclusively applicable to the
Company / industry. However, having regard to the Compliance system prevalling in the Company and on
examination of relevant documents and records on test - check basis, the Company has complied with
1he material aspects of the following significant laws applicable 1o the Company being an NBFC Company;

= Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

| Bawe 3%s0 examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (1C51) and made effective
from time to time,

| The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE)

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

Not applicable

During the year under review the Company has filed perfodical returns and has generally complied with the
srovisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
Company has received show cause from SEBI as mentioned:

[y The Compony was in recelpt of letter on December 30th, 2024 as per SEBI circulor no
SEBI/HO/CFO/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11 July 2023 in which SEBI has imposed fine on the company for
miaking delay in furnishing disclosure of related party transactions as per Regulation 23(9) of SEBL (LOGR), 2015

The Compony has deposited the fine imposed by SEBI on 01.01.2025.

(6} The Compony wos in receipt of letter on November 13th, 2024 os per SEB! rirculsr no
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated fuly 11, 2023 in which SEBI has imposed the fine on. the company for

moking delay in furnishing Secretariol Complionce Report for the FY 2022-23 as per (Regulation 24fA] of SER
LODR), 2015,

The Company has paid the fine imposed by SEBl an 14,.11,2024

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non
txecutive Directors and independent Directors including Women Director. There was no cessation/appointment
during the period under review.

Mobila : 7275562545

E-mail : esratnatiwari@gmail.com
Address : F-3, First Floor, Siddharth
Villa, 7117, Tilak Magar, Kanpur
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RATNA TIWARI
Company Secretary

A pwr—mviewad unit

Encept in case of meetings convened at shorter natice, adequate notice is given to all diregtors 10 schedule the
foard Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtalning further information and clarifications an the agenda items before the r'n_eet'mg. and
far meaningful participation at the meeting.

all the Decisions at the meetings of goard of Directors/ Committees of the Company were carrind put with
reguisite majority.

| furiher report that:

Raspd on the review of compliance rmechanism gstablished by the Company, the information provided by the
Cumpany, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit and compliance certificatels)
placed hefore the Board Meetings, there are adegquate systems and processes In thie Cormpany commensurate with
the size and gperations of the Company 1o monitor and ensure comphiance with applicable general laws, rulls,
regulations and guidelines,

| further report that:

The Compliance by the Company of the appilcable financial laws fike Direct and Indirect Tax laws, fhas not been
reviewed in this pudit singe the same have been subject to the review by the Statutory Auditors and othel
designated professionals.

| further report that:

Juring the Audit period under raview, there were no ather instances of:

a} Public/Right issue af shares/ debenture sfsweat equity BIC.

b} Redamption | buy-back of sepurities.

£} Major decisions +aken by the members in pursuance 1o section 180 of the Compa nies AT, 2013,
oy merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, ete.

) Foreign techmcal collabo rations

. No.: A51400

C.p. No.: 19765

UDIN: AD51400G000251.006

peer review certificate nNo. 308172023

Date: 02052025
place: Kanpur
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RATNA TIWARI
Company Secretary

A peer-reviewed unit

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter.of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an intepral
part of this report.
1. This Report is limited to the Statutory Compliances on laws [ regulations [ guidelines listed In aur report -

which have been complied by the Company up o the date of this Report pertaining to financiai year
ended March 2025,

*

(o

Mabile : 7275562545

E-mail ; csratnatiwari@gmail.com
Address ; F-3, First Floor, Siddharth
Milla, 7117, Titak Nagar, Kanpur
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To

RATNA TIWARI

Company Secretary
A peer-reviewed unit

Annexure-A

The Members,
KEY CORP LIMITED

CIN: LE5921UP1985PLCO07547
16/16-A Civil Lines Kanpur,

Uttar Prld_nsh, India, 208001

Our report pf even date Is to be read along with this letter.

1,

Malntenance of Secretarlal record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on‘our audit.

| have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance aboul
the correctniess of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on 1est basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the process and practices,
followed, provide a reasonable basis for our apinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts af thy
Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management reprasentation about the Compliance of faws, rules
and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test

hasis,

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of thi

M. MNo.: A51400

C.P. No.: 19765

UDIN; AD51400G000251006

Feer review certificate No, 3081/2023

Date: 02/05/2025
Place: Kanpur
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of KEY CORP LTD.

-

: B

We V.P. Aditya & Co,, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of KEY CORP LTD.
{"the Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
by the Company, for the year ended on 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 17
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V to the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing
Regulations”).

anagemen ibili

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

titor's R ibili

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Covernance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents
maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the
compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by
the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"), the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as
applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
“inancial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

Sased on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
caplanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as

CERTIFIED TO RE A TRUE COPY
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stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C
and D of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March, 2025.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or offectiveness with which the Management has conducted

the affairs of the Company.
For V.P. ADITYA & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000542C)
PLACE: KANPUR (CA.SURENDRA KAKKAR)
DATED: 13-05-2025 Partner
Membership No. 071912

UDIN: 25071912BNUKNM8898
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The detailed reporl on Corporate Governan

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

in the format prescribed by SEB| and incorporated in clause 4

of the Listing Agreement is set oul below.

1.

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of the highest level of
transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its operations and in all its interactions with its
stakeholders including shareholders, employees and the clients. The company believes that all its
operations and actions must serve the goal of enhancing overall share value over a sustained period of
time.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The present strength of the Board of Directors is Six, whose composition is given below:
One promoter Mon-Executive & Mon-independent Director, Three Independent Non-Executive Directors
(including one women director), One Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and One Non-Independent
Executive-Oiractor.
The Board of Directors met 5 times during the year. These wera on 15/04/2024, 27/05/2024, 10/08/2024,
22/10/2024 and 22/01/2026.
The Composition of the Board of Directors, attandance of Directors at the Board Meetings and at the last
Annual General Masting as also the number of Directorships and Committee Memberships held by them
in other Companies are given below !
Name of Direclor Calegory Mo of Mo af Attendance of Refationship Mook No. ol Membership
Bioard R tha last AGN | Interested Diractorship inf  in Commitiss of
Mestings Mastings held an Directir =41y Directors in cthar
Hald - Alended 1002024 Comparies G rigs
Chairman mmgar
Or. K. B. Agarwsl Promuter [ E Yes D, Mukyl Agereal - B .
Chalrman Horn-|ndependent {Sen)
Hon:Exacilve
Do, Mukul Agarwal | Hen-independant 5 2 Yes Dr. K.B, Agarwal
Dirgctor Nen-Exgcuthes [Father)
& ALK, Gupta | Indepandent Non 3 ] Yas B
Diirectar Emscutiva
Iz Banju.Jzin Inepensent Non [] ] Yax =
Biractoe Expoutive
Shri R.K. Tandan Independent 6 2 Yes s - =
Dizpcion Non-Executive
Shr G D, Mahashwarn Man- ] [ Yes - - -
Duecior Indepandaent
Exgtuive

MEET]NG OF THE INDEPEMDENT DIRECTORS
During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held to assess and review
the performance of Non Independent Directors, Board and timely flow of infarmation to Board from the

Company’s management. The Independent Directors of the Company were satisfied with the performance
and timely flow of information,

EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS MEMBERS

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried oul by the entire Board excluding the directors
being evaluated. Furiher, the Board also carried out assessment of its own performance and that of its
committeas based upon critefa such as performance agalnst set objectives, contribution 1o the
developmemt of long-term strategy and risk management, level of communication amongst the
Board/Committee members and of the Board/Commiltee members with Key Managerial Personnels,

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR

The Practicing Company Secretary has given a certificate that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disgualified from being appointed or conlinuing as a director of
Companigs by the Board/MCA or any such statutory authority.

4, AUDIT COMMITTEE

A. Composition and Broad Terms of Reference
The Audit Commitiee of the Company comprises of following three directors: -
Shri R.K. Gupta : Independent, Mon-Executive Director & Chairman of the Committee
Ms. Manju Jain : Independent, Non-Executive Director
Shri Ravindra Kumar Tandon Independent, Non-Executive Direclor

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY
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Al

B)

Al these Directors possess knowledge of Carporate Finance/Accounts/Company Law, The Statutory Auditors
attend the meetings as invitees.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee constituted by the Board in terms of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Corporate fovemance code as prescribed under clause 49 of the Listing
Aorasment.

. Meetings/Attendance

During the financial year ended 31* March, 2025, four meetings were held on 77.05.2024, 09.08.2024,
22.90.2024 and 22.01.2025,

The Commities approved the annual accounts for the year 2023-2024 in their meeting held on 27 May, 2024,

The attendance of the committes meetings Is as under :

o e
Mame of Members Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Shri Raj Kumar Gupta 4
M=, Manju Jain 4 4
Shri Ravindra Kumar Tandon 4 2
1 3 i

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

COMPOSITION

The Namination and Remuneration Commitiee of the Company comprised of Shri Ravindra Kumnar Tandon,
Ms. Manju Jain, Shri Raj Kumar Gupla.

MEETINGS | ATTENDANCE

During the financial year ended 314 March, 2025 four meetings were held on 25" June, 2024,17™ August
2024, 30" October 2024 and 17 March 2025,

The attendance of the committae meslings is as under
Mame of Members Meetings Hald Meetings Attended
4

Snr Ravindra Kumar Tandon {Chairman) 4

Shri Raj Kumar Gupla 4 4

Ms. Manju Jzin 4 4
REMUNERATION POLICY

Remunergtion policy of the company is direcled towards rewarding performance, based on review of
achievements  However, during the year only sitting fee was paid to the Mon-Executive Directors,
Remuneration was paid to Executive Diractor as par the terms of his appointment approved by the general
body.

The number of Equity Shares held by Non Executive Directors of the Company as on 31.03,20258 is a3 under;-
Mame of Directors

Nos. of Shares Held
Dr. K.B. Agarwal 41.44,519
Shri R.K Guota 100
Ms. Manju Jain 100

REMUMNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Details of Remuneration/Sitting Fee to all the Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Namgz of Dirgctor Salary Benefits Sitting Fee Total

Or. K. B. Agarwal - = 25000 25000

Cir. Mukul Aganval - . 10000 10000

| Shel R:K. Gupta - - FLI) 28000
s Manju Jein - - 33060 33000 .

Ehri Ravindra Fumar Tandan - . 14200 14000

[ 5hi G D. Manestari ] £36200 145446 - 4545

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP CO MMITTEE

The Share Transfer Committee inter-alia has been given the powers to deal with all the matters
related to transfer, transmission, issuance of duplicate share cerificates, split and/or consolidation
requests. The Share Transfer Commitiee meets regularly. During the financial year ended 31% March,
2025, Four meatings were held on 30.04.2024, 31 07,2024, 21,10.2024 and 22.01,2025.

Name of Members ] Meetings Held Meetings Attended
Ms. Maniu Jain 4 4
"Shn Ravindra Kumar Tandon 4 ' 2 |
[ Shri G.D. Maheshwari 4 | 4 |
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Auditors

of the
Listing

£1 COMPLIANCE OFFICER & INVESTOR GRIEVANCE
Sen D N Wshra, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Is assigned with the responsibilities of

owersseng Investor's Grisvance. Her email address is keycorpltd@gmail.com and Telephone
Mo BSO4ETTEDD

Dwreg the year under review, no complaints were received,

7. CENSHAL BODY MEETING
Leesios =00 fime where last three AGMs were held

Foancial Year | Date Time Place of the Meeting
TEL20M | 10/08/2024 10:00 am 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur

v B sr ] | 12/0a2023 1000 am 16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur

=-En | oafRar2022 10:00 am 16/16-4, Civil Lines, Kanpur
Dhrog te yesr ended 31st March, 2025 no special resolution has been proposed/ passed by the
Cospasy's sharshoiders through postal ballot, At the ensuing Annual General Meeting, there s no

seschuties proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

§) DISCLOSURES

&) CEOICFO CERTIFICATION
& s=sificaton in accordance with Provisions of Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreemant in respact of lhe
femrcs year 2024-25 signed by CEO and CFO has been placed before the Board.

£8 CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Direclors has already adopted the Code of Ethics & Business conduet for the Directors and
Seor Marscement personnel. This code is a comprehensive code applicable to all Executives as well as
see ssecutive direciors and members of the Senior Management. A copy of the code has been hosted on
e Coroany = websile www.keycorplid.com:

Tae Esecutv= director and CEO of the Company has submitted his report regarding Code of Conduct by
S Deeciers =0 Senior Management for the year ended 31# March, 2025 and the same is annexed with
s oot

D EELATES PARTY TRANSACTIONS
& comererens 2 bst of Related parties & their transactions as required by Ind AS-24 issued by Minislry of
S oserss A%=cs in consultation with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, forms part of an
Samesars o = Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report & is-placed before the Addit Committee, None of
P tuesa—ons with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company.

B WEESTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Compey Promoters advocates ethical behavior In all its business activities and has put in place a
swcraeee for repording liegal or unethical behavier. The Company has a vigil mechanism and whistle biower
golcy wmser which the employess are fres to report viclations of applicable laws and regulalions and code of
semic  Th= ceportsble matters may be disclosed to the Ethics and compliance Task Force which operates
e e secervision of the Audit Committee.  Employees may also report to the Chairman of the Audit
Comeitse Durngthe year under review no employee was denied access (o the Audit Commitiee,

& FNE LEWED BY BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD.

e Soce Sxceoge levied fine a totaling of Rs.8,260/- under Regulation 28(2), 28(3) and 23(%)
a0 o= Regulstion 24(A). The Company has deposited the same on 01.01.2025 and

W TLESa

P BENSSEWENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Waase—et Discussion and Analysis Repert forms part of the annual repart.

§ EEaE OF COMMUNICATION
“oe Sorwary suomitted its Annual, Half Yearly & Quarterly resulls lo the Steck Exchange as required by
S ey Soreement and also published them In the two newspapers namely The Pioneer (Engiish),

Sesmpary Cretana (Hindi)
e Sessca c==us and shareholding pattern of the Company are also avallable on its website
[pe———em iy
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. COMPLIANCE

The Company Secretary, while preparing the Agenda, noles on agenda and minutes of the mestings, s
responsible for and |s required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations including the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder, as applicable and the Secretarial Standards
recommended by the Institute of Company Secretanies of India.

GENERAL SHARE HOLDER INFORMATION
Annual General Meeting:

Day, Dateand Time - Tuesday, the 15" July, 2025
At10:00am
Venue - Registered Office of the Company at

16/16-A; Civil Lines, Kanpur — 208 001
Financial Calendar (tentative)
Results for the quarter

a) First Quarter Results -Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending June, 2025
b} Second Quarter Resulls -\Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending Sept., 2025
¢) Third Quarter Rasulls -Within 45 days from the close of quarter ending Dec., 2025
d) Results for the year ended 31.03,2025 -Within 60 days from the close of quarter/year ending March, 2026

Annual General Meeting Uplo Seplember, 2028

Book Closure Date - oth July, 2025 to 15" July, 2025

(Both days inclusive)
Dividend Payment Date - Mot Applicable (Mo Dividend proposed)

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The Company's shares are listed with B S E Limited, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001,

Stock Code
Demat ISIN in NSDL/CDSL - INE130F01 016

Stock Market Price data for the year 2024-2025
During the year the market quotation of the stock at Bombay Stock Exchange Lid.
Mumbai was as follows:

Market Price Data [ =)

Month Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE})
High Low

April, 2024 128.72 02.24

May, 2024 176.20 181.25

June, 2024 186.65 137.85

July, 2024 188.90 147.40

August, 2024 274,35 165.50
September, 2024 | 333.85 262.85
October, 2024 354.50 273.70
MNovember, 2024 | 307.05 251.10
December, 2024 | 347.80 257.00
January, 2025 320.00 185.75
February, 2025 227.80 164.45
March, 2025 223.90 | 17405

Share Price performance in comparison to broad based indices - BSE
As only few transactions could take place in the Company's shares during the year hence the
comparison of share price with BSE indices is not feasible;

Registrar and Transfer Agent
Mis. AES Consultants Pt Ltd., having lts office at R.No, 99 Stephen House, 6th Floor 4 B.B.D. Bag
{East). Kolkata - 700 001 are the Registrar and Transfer Agant for both demat and physical segment.

Share Transfer System
The Company's shares are traded in the Stock Exchanges Mumbal enly in Demat mode. As per Rule
physical transfer of shares is banned. .
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K. (a) Distribution of Sharehelding as on 31" March, 2025

| MNo. of Equity Share| No. of Folios % of Mo. of Shares Held % of Shares
| Held Folios Held
is 001 to 500 11163 96.55 1377311 22.96
} 501 to 1000 287 2.48 226500 3.76
& ' 1001 1o 2000 77 0.67 109418 1.52
2001 1o 3000 18 0.14 38270 0.65
3001 to 4000 o7 0.06 24353 0.41
4001 o 5000 02 0.02 9795 0.16
5001 to 10000 0B (.08 39517 0.66
10001 and above 03 0.03 4173827 69,56
TOTAL 11561 100.00 5000000 100.00
(b} Categoriss of Shareholders as on 31* March, 2025
_ Category % of Share Holding
2026 Fromolers 69.08%
Body Corporate 0.65%
BanksiFl's 0.01%
Mutual Funds 0.01%
Public({indian)} 28.77%
| PubliciNRD 0.25%
i HUF 2.13%
| Trust 0.00%
{2} There are no institutional investors who are shareholder's of the company.
12 A Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity
As on 31st March, 2025, 78.52% of the Company's total shares representing 47,10,893 shares were
held in dematerialised form and the balance 21.48% representing 12,89,107 shares were in physical
form. i
Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in Demat form. Fer having proper Higuidity,
the equity shares of the company is listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd,, Mumbal.
128 Outstanding GDORs/ADRs/\Warrants or
any Convertible instruments, Conversion
Date and likely impact on equity - MIL
1ZC Plant Locations - LA,
12D Subsidiaries - NIL
1ZE Address for Correspondence
(il The Company's Registered Office |s situated at
16/16-4, Civil lines,
Kanpur - 208 001 (U.P)
Tel; B504627809
Email: keycorpltd@gmail.com
the (i) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
Mis. ABS Consultants Put, Lid,,
R. No. 98, Stephen House, 6th Floor, 4 B.B.D. Bag (East), Kolkata - 700 001
Tel: (033)-22201043, 22430153
Bag Email: absconsultant.29@gmail.com CERTIFIED TO.BE A TRUE. COPY
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ule (V. KiParldey)
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Declaration regarding compliance by Board members and senior
management personnel with the Company's Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its
employees and Directors

| confirm that the company has in respect of the financial year ended March
31, 2025 received from the senior management team of the Company and
the members of the Board, a declaration of compliance with the Code of
Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, senior management team means the
Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and all functional heads of
the Company as on March 31, 2025.

Place : Kanpur (G. D. Maheshwari)
Dated : 13" May, 2025 Executive Director & CEO
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INDEPEN ¢ T

jor To,
The Members of Key Corp Limited.

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

its We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of KEY CORP LIMITED
{ “the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the
fmancial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

of o us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 as amended (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and
f2ir view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March 2025, its profit and other Comprehensive

‘ncome for the period, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
e cate.

of

¥

2 Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with Standards
on Auditing [SAs) as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
{28 AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india [TICATT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
Snancial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have
fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained are sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended 31%

March, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
2 separate opinion on these matters. For each malter given below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

L

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the

e
(V. K. Pande:
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters given below
provide the hasis for our audit opinion to be Key audit matter on the accompanying Ind AS
Financial Statements.

5, | Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the/
Na. key audit matter

1. | Accounting for Retirement Benefit (Refer eWe have verified the

Mmmgmﬂﬁﬂnaﬂﬂﬂ provision of gratuity in

% accordance with the

The provision for retirement benefit for accounting policy consistently

gratuity is made as per the Payment of Gratuity followed by the company to
Act, 1972. The Indian Accounting Standard-19 ensure that the provision is as
prescribed by the Central Government is advocated by the Payment of
applicable to the company in its entirety as the Gratuity Act, 1972.

company isa listed company.

In formulating the accounting policy regarding
employee benefits, the management of the
company was considered by the fact that
average number of emplayees at any time
during the year was less than 50. In similar
circumstances, unlisted company are also
calculating and accounting for the accrued
liability of Gratuity by some other rational
method. Provision of the Payment of Gramity
Act, 1972 also gives one such method.

The management of the company decided to
continue with the same accounting policy as it
still feels that the size of the company does not
make it feasible to provide gratuity by way of
Actuarial Valuation.

4. Information Other Than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The
Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on
the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, OUr respo nsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to “"P“?.-i‘% ;.]115 regard.

CE ‘:&_Ié’r'l Efgﬁ‘_\;} d"ﬂ} E",L ‘[_I:'tﬂ .'
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Jroue % Bespensibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
ﬂ:’l: Fimancial Statements
it The Compony's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
Elow of “the Aot with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give
nd AS # tree aad fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprebensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
i the wits the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified
wnder sectom 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Saes 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
t'}“ Sesmestiss records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
= #ssets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
o seection and zpplication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
ently £t mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
o o sfeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
;i 15;. pocurecy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
gresestation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
o mate 2l misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
8 pregariong the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Camoasy s abdity to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
% pomg coscern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
giter mtends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
sherzative but to do so.
These Suard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
TToMrIIg pTOCess.
& Aadiser's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Dwr afyectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
siatessents 25 3 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
el S tsmee an suditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Sessomatle assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
semdected m accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
eusts Misssstements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if
t iwifualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
he seomasmie decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements.
i on
%5 part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
masste s professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
to #® ety and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
Hon is wiether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
2 the S amd ebtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
e Spises. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
ation, San Sor eme resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

smissaes, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”] issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in

Annexure "A% a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
order.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY¥ ™
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it 5} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by the law have been kept by the
Act, Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

ate £} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
ting Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity

Seai with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

Eof &) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Siamdards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended: except non-compliance of IND AS-19 “Employee
Semefits” to the extent that the provisions for retirement benefits for Gratuity are

; i made as per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and not in the manner prescribed
‘E’ = IND AS-19. (Refer note no. 11(c) of IND AS Financial Statements)

we £} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31

the March, 2025, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

Our Sisqualified as on 31 March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section

Bt 164(2) of the Act;

" f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS

S:ancial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to “Annexure
B to this report.
£ I= cur opinion, the managerial remuneration to its Directars for the year ended 312
March, 2025, has been paid/provided by the Company in accordance with the provisions
& section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act:

ers,

any % With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
Wik Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors”) Rules, 2014, (as amended) in our
S =ion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

‘Ed (1) There are no pending litigations on the company in respect of which a provision

ith is required to be made.

g (4} The Company has made provisions as required by applicable law or IND AS for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative
contracts.

pse Ul]  There are no amounts required to be transferred to Investor Education and

for Protection Fund by the Company.

Ve (%) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and

blic belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been

nat advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
of or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
ch person(s] or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("intermediaries”), with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermedi ary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the com pany [“ultimate
by Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
in ultimate Beneficiaries:
the

(if) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly
S A TRUE COPA
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)
(vi)

PLACE: KANPUR
DATED: 13.05.2025

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party ["ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iif) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has

caused us to believe that the representations under sub- clauses (i) and (ii)

contain any material mis-statement.
The Company has not declared dividend during the year.

The Company has used an accounting software which has operated throughout
the year for maintaining its books of account as determined by the
management. The said accounting software has 4 feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility which was not tampered during the year. The audit trail (edit
log) facility has been preserved since the date of its implementation. However,
the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility has not been enabled at the
database layer to log any direct changes made in the books of account using the

said software.

For V.P. ADITYA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000 542C)

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR)
Partner
Membership Ne. 071912
UDIN: 25071912BNUKNL4948

CERTIFIED TO nE A TRUE cory

- & Lid.
For Key %P :‘[(
(v. K. Pan 4c)

Joint Secreta Y

30

- N N



39th Annual Report

Annexure “A” Referred to in paragraph 7(1) of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even
date to the members of Key Corp Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year
ended 31 March, 2025.

Based on such checks and other generally accepted auditing procedures carried on by us and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we report on the matters specified

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order: -

(i)a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of its property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets; hence this clause of the Order is not
applicable.

b) The Company has certified that all the property, plant and equipment have been physically
verified by the Management during the year and there is a regular programme of verification
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of “Key Leasing and Finance Limited", the erstwhile name of the
Company. The details are as follows:

Description | Gross Carrying | Title Deed | Whether title | Period Reasons for not
of Property | Value (X) Held inthe | deed holder | held being held in the
name of is a name of
promoter, Company J
director or
their relative
or employee Sy
Land at 6,70,447 /- Key No Since 20% | Key Leasing and
16/16-A, Leasing day of | Finance Limited is
Civil Lines, and July, 1987 | the erstwhile name
Kanpur Finance of the company.
Limited

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) during the year and there are no identified intangible assets in the company.

&) During the year no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made there under.

ii)a)During the year, the company had no inventory in the nature of stock on hire; hence, clause

3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable.
CERTIFI TO RE A TRUR GOPY
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b} During any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of currént assets, hence this para is not applicable.

(iii)a) Since the Company's principal business is to give loans, accordingly the provision of clause
3{iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

) The Company is a Non- Banking Finance Company registered under provisions of REI Act,
1934 and rules made thereunder (NBFC). In our opinion, the investments made and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees
provided during the year are prima facie not prejudicial to the company’s interest. The company
has not provided any guarantees or security during the financial year ended 315t March, 2025.

c) The Company, being a NBFC, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said
Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms
("NPA norms"), monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its customers as
stipulated. In our opinion, in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and is regular in the
financial year ended 31= March, 2025 except few instances of delays of repayments.

d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made
thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly,
the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, menitors and report total
amount overdue including principal and for payment of interest by its customers for more than
90 days. Asat 31= March, 2025 there are no overdue amounts exceeding 20 days.

¢) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, accordingly, the provision of clause
3(iii){e) of the Order is not applicable to it.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

iv) In our opinion, the Company has not granted any loan to directors etc. prescribed u/s 185 of
the Act. Further, the Company is a NBFC ; hence, Section 186 of the Act, is not applicable to the
Company.

v) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vi] The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of the cost records under
section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company.

viiJa) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Goods & Service tax, provident fund, Income tax and other material statutory
dues applicable to it. The Employees State Insurance Act is presently not applicable to the
company. Further to our information, there were no undisputed amounts in respect of Income
tax and other material statutory dues which were in arrears as at 31.03.2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date these became payable.

b) There are no dues of income tax & other material statutory dues which are not required to be
deposited on account of any dispute,

viil) There are no transactions which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), hence this clause of

the Order is not applicable. - e s
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(ix) a) The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any lender hence this clause
| and clauses (ix){b), {ix)(c), (ix){d), (ix)(e) and (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

(x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
| during the year.

(xd) (a) The Company has certified that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company
| has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act have been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 with the Central Government.

|
' (c) During the year no whistle-blower complaint is received, hence this para is not applicable.

: (xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable,

. (xiii} Based on our examination of the records of the Company, transaction with related parties
as identified by the management of the company, are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) To the best of our Imnwledge and belief, in our opinion the company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of the business, though it needs
improvement in respect of its extent of coverage.

(b) The report of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit have been considered by us.

(v} Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvija) The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company requiring it o be registered under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company has obtained the said
registration.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) The Company does not have any group under CIC.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of T 4.61 lakhs during the financial year and there
was ¥ 4.78 lakhs Cash Joss in the immediately preceding financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

{xix) On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that indicates that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when the fall due.

(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Act in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the company, hence this para is not applicable. (Refer Note No. 27 of the Ind AS
Financial Statements)

(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture; hence this clause
of the Order is not applicable.

For V.P. ADITYA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
[FRN: DO0542C)

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR)
Partner
Membership No.: 071912
UDIN: 25071912BNUKNL4948

Place: Kanpur

Dated: 13.05.2025 CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY
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Annexure ‘B’ Referred to in paragraph 7(2)(f) of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even
date to the members of Key Corp Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year

ended 315t March, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial
Statements of Key Corp Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence L0 company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS
financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated

effectively in all material respect.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit,evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the Ind A5 financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectivencss of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the

Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to the Ind AS financial

statements is a

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY
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(V. KJPandey)
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accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to the
Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inhérent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS
financial statements including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
contrals, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to the Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal financial controls
reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note") (Refer para 7(2)(vi) of our Independent
Auditor’'s Report)

For V.P. ADITYA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000542C)

Place: Kanpur

Dated: 13.05.2025
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE cory (CA SURENDRA KAKKAR)
For Key Corp Lid. Partner
Membership No.: 071912
(V. K. Pandey) UDIN: 25071912BNUKNL4948

Joint Secretary

26




39th Annual Report

KEY CORP LIMITED
16/16-A, CIVIL LINES, KANPUR-208001
E&Eﬂ:mm&wmnm
(¥ in lakhs)
Note ]
Particulars No. Asat 31.03.2025 Asat 31.03.2024 :
ASSETS E
(1) |Einancial Assets i
(&) |Cashand cash equivalents 1 33.41 20.50 :
(b]) |Receivables i
Trade Receivables z 112 1.03 x
(¢) |Loans 3 134.67 12063 I
{d]} |Investments 4 6610.84 G169.76 f
(2) |Non-financial Assets
(a) |Currenttaxassets 5 0.24 24
(b) |Deferred tax Assets (Net) (4] 752 6.58
() |Property, Plant and Equipment 7 36.94 33.20
(d) |Cther non-financial assets ] 1.18 1.32
Total Assets 682592 635543
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) |Einancial Liabilities
(a) |Payables
(1) Other Payables:
(i) tozal outstanding dues of micro enteprises and small D,DD1 000
enterprises
1[1':] total outstanding dues of creditors otherthan micro 39z 274
enterprises and small enterprises 9
(b) |Other financial liabilitics 10 1.64 194
{2) |Mon-Financial Liabilitics
(a) |Provision 11 28.59 24.61
(b) |Cther Non-financial liabilities 12 _ oz .16
Total Liabilities 36.36 29.45
(2) {EQUITY
(a) |Bquity Share capital 13 600.00 600.00
(b} jOther Equity 14 5189.56 5725.98
Total Equity 6789.56 6325.98
Total Liabilities and Equity 6825.92 6355.43
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 1-33
Material Accounting Policies 34
In terms of our separate report For and an bebalfl of Key Corp Limited.
of even date attached CIN: L65921UP1985PLE0OTS47
For V.P.ADITYA & CO,
Chartered Accountants KB, Agarwal G.0. Maheshwari
(FRN : 000542C) ' {DIN:00339934) (DIN:O0235209)
Chairman Executive Director
[CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) Daya Nath Mishra R.N. Singh
Partner (M. No. F26546) Chief Financial Officer
Membership No. : 071912 Company Secrotary
Place : Kan ’
Dated :13.3;.;1325 CERTIFIED TO BE A TRAUE COPY .

For Key Corp Ltd.
I//

47 V. K Pandey)

Joint Secrata e




KEY CORP LIMITED
16/16- A, CIVIL LINES, KANPUR-208001

EART M- STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2025

7 in lakhs)
- Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
PFarticulirs MNote No. 2075 2024
Bevenue from operations
1} Interest Income 15 323m) 2656
(i) |Divicend Income 244 +07
(1}  |Net profit on Fair Value Changes 17 474 44 319661
{iv] [Management Feas L58§ 14
{1} [Total Revenue from operations 51124 EFFLTIT
()} Jocher Income 16 0.7 {0
() | Total lncome (1411} 512.00 3229.17]
Expenaes
[i} [Feesand Recovery exponse 18 120 092
{ii] |Employee Benefits Exponsas 18- 4092 33.59
{iii} |Depreciation, amortization and impairment 7 556 5.00
(vl JOthers expenses 20 3342 3LT9
(¥ [|Total Expenses {IV) —BLig FFEL]
{w ) | Profic/{loss) before exceptional items and tax (11157 430.90 315677
[wiil) |Exceptional itums o.oo| 0.00
(vili) |Profie/{loss) befors e [V V1) 430.90] 3156.77]
(ix] |LaxExpense; |
111 Current Tax 0.00 0.0
[2) Deferred Tax 6 {0.94) [0.34)
[0.94) [0.34]
(xd} | Profic [{loss] for the peiod from continuing operations{V11-VIlI) 431.84 3157.11
[xii) | Profit/(luss) [rom discontinued operations T | 0.0p
{xiii} [Profit/[loss]) for the period [xi+xii) 431.454 315711
[xiv)
[A] () leems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 47282 1633.51
I[:E‘IMD:M tax refating to items Uhat will not be redassified 1o profitor e 000
Sub total (A) 4?&52 1633.51
(B (1) Teemns that will be reclassified to profit or loss (441,08} {3168.00)
(4} Income tax relating bo items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 ol
Sub total {B) {441.08]] [3168.00]
Other Comprehensive Income [A + B) 3174 (1534.49)
[x¥} |Total Comprehensive lncome for the period (XI+XI[Comprising
Profit/{Loss) sand other Comprehensive Income for the period) a63.58| 1622.62
[xvi) |Earnings per equity share [for continuing eperations)
Basic & Diluted m Z1 7.20 52,62
(Excluding Other Comprehepsive inoome)
Basic & Diluted [7) 773 27.04
(Including Ouer Comgrehensive Income)
Seeaccompanying notes to the financial statements. 1-323
Material Accountng Policies

In terms of our separate report
ol even date altached

For V.PADITYA & CO.

For and on behalf of Key Corp Limited

CIN : LG59Z1UP1985PLCDD 7547

Chartered Accountants BB Agarwal G.0. Mahesbiward

(FRN : 000542C) {DIN:00339934) (DIN:00235209)
Chairman Executive Director

{CA SURENDRA KARKAR)

Fartner Daya Nath Mizshra FLN. Singh

Membership No. : 071912 e 1E A TRUE COPY (M No F2656) Chiel Financial Officer

Flace : Kanpur ':E.?'TlrIED 08 Company Secrebary

Dated ; 13.05.2025 ror Key C rp Lid.

W, I Pa é;fﬂ}r]

Joint Secretary
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KEY CORP LIMITED

Wﬂﬂm

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
{ In Lakhs)
Year ended
i 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before by 430.90 315677
Add: Depreciation, amortsation and Impatrment 5.56 5,09
Lexs: Mize, Income 0.00 {0.04)
Lesg: Dividend from Mutual Fundsg (2.44) (4.07)
Less: Gain from Mutual Funds Units {33.36) [28.61)
Add: Income Tax Expense Q.00 0.02
Less: Profir on Sale of Fixed Assets (024 0.00)
Add: Provision for Standard Asset 0.06 0.09
Less: Interest received on Income Tax (052} 000
Less: Net [ gain)/loss on flr value chapges on investment [441.08) {3168.00)
Operating profit before working capital changes (41.12) (38.75)
muvements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in loans an vehicle [14.11) {21.98)
(Increase)/decreass in currentassets and advances 0.14 (0:18)
Increase /{decrease] in provision for gratulty 3492 093
Increase{ decrease) in current liahilities and advances 293 [4.86)
Cash generated from operations (7.12) [26.07)
Direct tixes paid [net of refunds) 267 [o.26|
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating activitles (A) {45.57) [65.28]))
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of Investments [Mutual Funds) 55.lﬂr T047
Dividend from Mutual Funds 244 4.07]
Purchase of Flxed Assets {10.07) (2.13)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1.01 0,044
Net cash flows from/{used in} Investing activities (B) 58,48 72.45
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash flows from financing activites (C) .00 0,00
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1291 717
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning 20,504 1333
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3341 20,50
Cash and cash equivalents st the end of the year
i) Cashonhand 041 0.49
i} Balances with banks [of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 33.00 20.01
Total 33.41 20.50
See accompanylng notes to the financial statements. 1-33
Material Accounting Policles 34
In terms of our separate report For and on behalf of Key Corp Limited
of even date attached CIN: L6592 1UP1985PLO0OTS4T
For VP ADITYA & CO.
Chartered Accountants ILB. Aparwal G.D. Maheshwari
(FEN : 000542C) [DIN:DD339934) (DIN:00235209)
Chairman Executive Director
(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR)
Partoer Daya Nath Mishra R.N. Singh
Membership No, : 071912 (M. No. 2656) Chief Financlal Officer
Place : Kanpur ny Secretary

Dated : 13.05.2025

For Key Corp Lid.
ot

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE cofgmpa

(V. H. Padaciey)
Joint Secratary

g g -




o b B bty Lol L n.q STOZ'SO'ET : paIEQ
A <_... i€l Y anduoey ¢ a2eld
AA1F0 [EPuEuld I3 Armaaxg Auedwo’y ZI6TL0 ¢ oN digsiaquap
yauis ‘N'y (959Z4 'ON ') Jauaegd
BIYSI PEN eAeg _n._.u %m.! 104 (MVIHVH VHANTHNS V2)
LoD .:.ZL v ag Ol Q¥ldlLuHD
4013331 2AANIAXT WRTITETy
{p0ZSEZOONIO) (*E6GEE00:NIT) (Dz#S000 * NH4)
HEMSayeN ‘D [emaedy ‘gH SIUEUNOINY palajiel)
00 ® VALIOGY'd'A 104
LYSLODDIASBETANTZOSIT  NID payoERE 238D U243 JO
papuy] diog 43y jo Jjeyaq uo pue 104 wodaa ayeredas ano jo suliag uf
00009 oo 00'o 00'n 00'oe9
popad Jeak pojtad Supodas sao013 popsad popsad Supsodad
Suprodad yuasims aip jiuasms sy Supnp endes| Juasms s jo Bupuuidag Jopad o3 anp rexde; enojaaad s1g 5o SixpuimBag 91 18 Souved
J0 pua aif 1€ acuejed | aseys Aunba upsafueyy | awie soue[eq payeisay | aueys fmbg ug saBuey)
#20Z'E0°'TE B SY LZ)
(syxerup 3)
00009 oo ao'n oo 00009
potiad Jeak portad Supaodaa si0453 poptad popsad Supsodaa
Supuodas Juarin aqy fjuaiima ayg Suunp endea| Juating sy jo Bujuuidag 1opad oy anp (ende) = P P
j0 pua 25 1€ aouepeg | aseys Aynbae uj saduey) | am 1w aouepeq paielsay | ateys Anbg wy saduey) G ol e
SZDZ'E0'1E1E SY (1)
(supyepur 2)
[ETdE] S.1ets AAmby Y
XIINOT NI SAONVHD 10 INTWILVIS
- z -

AILINTT 40D A3

40



39th Annual Report

fipjaunas Juop
(Aepued M "A)

_A

P11 EGU .hmv_ 104 STOTLOEL: PN

¥ warop % . JnduEy - aepd
JAOQJO EPaTELL A Armpandg doedwe AdOD dN¥l V 3IH 0L G341 983 ZT6TL0 0N Apgssaquaaty
yfuis Y (osgzd o Wl AL
IR N Ring [HYHHVH YRONTENS ¥
AQIIALN] BANAIIET UEBLILE#GT
(BDTSER00:NI) {ressEE0DNIal [DTH000 * Nl
MM D [EmaEly g T UTTTY IR
‘00 % YALIOVA d04
LFSL0DYTASRGEANTIASST i NID PRETTT I 0343 o
panpy] diay Ao 10 JTEGRG 0O PIE J0d ¢ uadas ayesedas J0s jo s uj
A6STLS Lig ] (#E0Lov) AFIEFL orost o [l [ [ (5] (g ] iy ] a0 oon|ESE TULEL 00D oo'a
(AL FTHEAT ST ol SUEDNUY AN | FUEAIU] A ME 1
priTEg A ol |uayasiduned | ussasdona | KEL ABIWMLGEL] | JEAR L
u.”._ﬂ__u.ﬁ._.n- P S [ v—— : i .r1=“:_ Fuprungg uﬂﬂﬂ wmoqd e | saqp =@y | pairagag 1_“-!_ EIREE sl rumiy | Bupped
Mol sy i e S| T | gl | oA g i ety Aamprpeys | punaduns | fauom | eonopag
paapEd LEEETETHIT IIE TjESnEN] | FUSEEnAT | dalasEg mpmoag i uapelde
Anoagy alwgg Aapmleg HH qssmaduioa | sawgs
‘wnpiling puE taaina [ Aimed
(e ap 3] FZ0ZE0TE1ESY (Z)
55 GRS (] e 9 ERAL DOsLE L] LIE] [EN] [T [N Boa LEE [E WL TILRT Bl o0
I Amn 20p | Subau] axy ! %
LN PPN Lt b £ S :ﬂmu sayaadie) | weyarduio) | xEL = yesmnnsn | JEsumOge
b Buti Bugwjuuen L0 P L) palbajag aakpiad aagasay [ErsEuY Jujpuzd
- aveys rpelln | Sprogasdem | chajioms peujcy. | RaseRs (i) _.__._“.__.,_.H._! um .___”._.i. pvarod | gBraig yEnon av JM..E; ey Lemims | penodusns | famom  |empnopaeg
Pl Lo sasvasagp | ™Y aapaigy | sssuna) | soswngsn | aasey o Pra——
EETET By iy Aipnbg maa ¥ 5 yeannduros LTl
anpiling pum saatasag il
{2 SZOZED'LE ESY (T)
EA DL B AT
TOUB0Z “HIANVH SANIT AT V91791

QI LINET JHOD AFH

41




Note No

(a)
(k]

(c)

KEY CORP LIMITED

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . (¥ in lakhs)
Asat 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
Particulars 2025 2024
In cirrent accounts EJ.EIIH 2001
h] Cash on hand .41 .49
Total 3341 Z0.50
(%] There are no bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity,
TRADE RECEIVABLES ;- (% In lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
As at 315t March,
Particula
B Lessthan 6 |6 months-1 12 Viirs 2.9 Mare than 2025
months year T 3 years
Undisputed Trade
Recelvahles- 112 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 112
Considered Good
(¥ in lakhs)
i ﬂumandi“ for followi ods_!mm due date of payment As at 315t Mareh,
Lessthan 6 |6 months-1 S 2.3 years | MoTe than 2024
munths year oy e 3 years
Undisputed Trade
Recelvahles- 1.03 0.00 D.00 0.00 0,00 1.03
Considered Good

Balance in aceounts of trade receivables is subject to confirmation.

ng for a period less thas six moanths from the date they are dise for payment, Further

there are no debis that are due by directors or any other officers of the company either severally or jointly. Alss there are no unbilled

dues in respect of trade receivablas ae ar 31st March, 2025,

In determing the value and credit loss of trade receivible of the Company the management has considered the
experience associated with the trade recefvables, Accordingly, the management does not envisage any credit risk or

historical eredic loss
credit impairment of

Its undisputed trade receivables g5 at 31st March, 2025,
INVESTMENTS ;- ® %’_
As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March, |
Particulars 2025 2024
(] Investments in Mutual Funds (Quated) 6610.84 6169.76
[Detailz as per annexure annexed)
Taotal 6610.84 6169.76

{b) Az at 31sr March, 2025 there |s only one type of investment Le,
Vatue Through Profit & Loss Account [FYTPL).

in Mutual Funds (held for trade) which have been measured at Falr

CURRENT TAX ASSFTS:. _ bl

As at 31st March, As at 315t March,
Particulars
2025 2024
(2) TDS (AY. 2025-26) 024 0.00
(1) TDS [AY 2024-25) .0 0.41
(C) Advance Tax 0.00] 2.00
Total , 0.24] 241
: -0 BE A TRUE LU
CERTIFIED T8
For Key Corp Lid.
A
(V. Pandey

laint Secreiany
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{i]
{in

[d) The Company {5 subject to Income Tax in India on the basis of financial statements. The company can claim tax
exemptions/deductions under specific sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961 subject to fulfilment to prescribed conditions |, as may be
applicable. As per the Income Tax Act 1961 , the company |5 Hable to pay Income tax hased on higher of regular income tax payabls or
the amount payable based on the provision applicible for Minimum Alternative Tax{MAT). MAT pald in excess of regular income tax
during a year can be carried forward for a pariod of fifteen years and can be offset against future liabilities ariging from regular income

(¢
(% in lakhs)
DEFERRED TAX ASSEST (NET) hﬂ?;;;:llrﬂ- hat's::zt:'larch,

Diselogures under Indian Accounting Standards-12 "Income Tax"

The Company bes procesded to account for Net Deferred Tax Assets of * 7,52 lakhs as at 315t March, 2025 (Previous Year ° 6,58 lakhs

LR CIFIED TO
For Ke

Jin accordanee with the said standard,
Depreciation 0.23 e
Gratuity 7.29 627
Total 752 [
Amount recerpnised Is the balance sheet under Deferred Tax Reserve is T 0.54 lakhs [Previous
Year T 084 laidhs)
Deferred Tax (Ciarge]/ Credit for the year
Opening Net Deferred Tax Asset .58 6,24
Less: Ciosing met Deferred Tax 753 658
Change in Defermed Tax Asset Account (0.94) {0.34)
\Hevogn e &5
| [Debit] f Credit to Deferred Tax Reserve Account 6K 0
Deferred Tax Charge /{Credit] in the Statement of Profit and Loss (0.94) (0.34)
a [% in lakhs)
As 2t 315t Ma As at 31st March,
ki 2025 2024
| Profit Bafere Tax (PET) 430.90 315677
Expecyed imcesses tas expense at statulory Income tax rate of 26%.(Previous Year 26%9) 11203 BZ0.76
Incoms sasmpt Som tan; lems not deductible/allowable 25 expenditure & brought lorward 11297 H21.10
lss etc
Tax Expense 25 reported [As Per Provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961) [0.94) (0.34]
Other s Financial Assets:- (% in lalchs)
Asat 31st March, | As at 31st March,
TAreniars 2025 2024
(2] Advance t= The Registrar Stale Consumer Commission .25 0.25
{b] Prepaid expenses { to the extent not written-off } 033 047
(€] Security deposit with Kesco Lid. 0.54 0.54
[d) Security deposit with PNG .06 0.0
Total 118 1.32]
Qther pavabes;- Ol taaks)
Outstanding for following perfods from due date of
Particulars e As at 31st March, 2025
LRss 1 1-Zyears | 2-3 years Hoke 3
Year L]
Others 255 0.00 0.00 137 392
[T in lakhs)
Dutstanding for followlng periods from due date of
Particulars o peent T Asat 31st March, 2024
an Maore than
Yoa 1-I years 2-3 years years
Others 1.37 .00 0.00 1.37 274

BE A Uk Uory

orp Lid.
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[ in Iakhs!
Asat 31st March, | Asat 3] Fl
Particulars 2025 2024
() Instalment received in advance from customers 47 1.02
(b} Liabilty for expenses 1.17 0,92
] Total 1.64 1.94
11 _PROVISIONS: _ (X in lakhs)
As at 31st March, | A= at 31st March,
Particulars 2025 2024
(] Provision for Employvees benefits 28.05 2413
Ih] Provizion against Standard Assets 054 048
Total 2859 24.61)

(€} The indian Accounting Standard-19 "Emplovee benefits”, issued by ICAl is applicable to the company in its entirety as the company i
i listed Company, In formulating the acconmting pelicy regarding employes benefits, The mssaemwat considered the fact that average
number of employees at any time during the financial year,were 17 ie. less than 50 In simisr ciroumstances unlistad companies have
been permitted to calculate and account for the accrued lability of Graguity, by scme sther rationa] methed Provision of The Payment OF
Gratuity Act, 1972 also gives one such method. This ix based on the assumption that sech besefty 3re payable to all employees at the end

of the accounting year. The management still feels that the size of the company dees sot == & fesable 10 provide Gratuity by way of
actuarial valuation. Hence, it is decided to continue with the same accounting policy.

12 - Ly
Fm A3 = 315t March, | As at 315t March,
Particulars s 2024
(a) Goods & Service Tax Payable 0.07 ﬂ.uul
b) Tax deducted at Source (Payable ] a.14 0,08
Total 821 0.16]
CERTIFIED TO HE A TRUE COPY

For Key Cgfp Lid.

Pell
(V. K. Pandey)

Joint Secretan,
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KEY CORP LIMITED

16/16-A CIVIL LINES KANPUR-Z08001
(¥ in lakhs)
Note No. 13. Equlty Share Capltal
Particulars As at 315t March, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Arithorised :
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 1000.00 100000

Issued, Subscribed & Pully Pald-up:

60,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-each GO0.00Y G00.00

{a)The Reconciliation of number of shares cutstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

As at March 31, 2024

As at 31st March, 2025
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Equity Shares at the Beginning of the year i), (4, 000 0,041, 0
|Changes during the ye=r 000 0
|Equity Shares at the end of the year (0, 00,000 60,00,000

{b JDetalls of sharebalders holding more than 5% shares in the company({Face value T 10/- per share)

Pasticulars As at 31st March 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the Sharebolder Number of Shares held %% Holding Number of Shares % Holding
held
Shri KB. Agarwa) 4144519 9,08 4144519 69.08

(C) The company ket saly one dass of equity shares having face value of T 10/- each and each sharehalder is entilied to one vote per

share.

Shares held by Promoters at the end of year ““:‘:ﬂ"""‘*"!
Fromoters mame Wo. of Shares %5 of total shares
Shri It.'!.bﬂ:mni 4144519 (9.08 1]

CERTIFIEL

3 T0 BE A ™TUE COPY

For Key Cprp Lid.

(V. KYPandey)
Joint Secretanry

45




fimssaas ol

Aopued x A

‘p17 410D Kod| 104
AdOD BnuL Y 34 01 QITALLYED

FEEZOE A 21 Bounp apes s sos e yERT DY mIpT
16 ey Risaeayl w6 SECK 5T POy dAlIRL LI Apimy ) FER] (b0 UTE )T RTETOE de, (Rrmmmung sy Buig: [asog) e yel g Qo0 T L TEH PAND 0L 10T MO IE 60 UON 0420 {aN 200 0L/ 026102/ [0 08 SONEURY 1P = yusg Samsay iR JUNLBISE i

[FiT I¥Eacpr] B EEhL [T [ oo [T e 0 [ 1] [T 5 ELTAT g
F (v reet] e n T : . . - . - ] - ;
w. B - - e o
TiGLE - TS i : - C = - C = - :
SELOTH FCPETH oFOELE = [T5] [I5) o [TI] [T (L] ‘nni il [ES1T]
LA e LA ¥
ELLIN- {rwnive) Bamsay  |IRESEEEI g i ke qaidming JummnnEn | jaweno)
Ll e sablad e Bupepunn | mplmg e | sop ey | aepn S | e peiey Frre— P "
pEoL W ||ty | P s w | umingen) | wooued | gfesinp | sl | ey sy lB:E.-:. PEIEFD ] feming | panadies | fanses
pasjaIag Adzdalezp LR T IR TT s e R | » nopdde
ARtam ATRa Auwprg dymbyg W P
e Lby
vy g 51

#I-ETOZT 4234 [F2uwnl] s oy Aunba Q0 g

'EZRBIE A 9 B apewm ag 00 PNGY §ER] ‘i e
0 31353 3149 005 8/ sy Bisasas Asneeg gt wow] (BU01R ) 8 575202 Ak (RRuTaia e B (ssr)/snsd 1a0 i3 DZOZEL R Pt OE-5T 0T/ S0 T 0T EE/ BT N I (I ENHON DLT/E-6 0%/ 1M DN USHISUTION EIPHL 12 NEFE AnitEdd Sk e

Ea1S 0 Towaine] SVTRRL Jomrosts o B [ 0 ] O _I._- o £ TE1sL

YL B [vne [eaa . r = - - - o - 0 =)

VELLF i3] B I - . p - - - B

[pevEE T EETR [ 0 o i3 B 1] “»ﬁn T3 [0
MNELR syl ansasay | (TESHESDELGY EalpaE sl qasdmny L ) | juesr
apyE Seprsuen | mpEmgus | seligen | =Ha angn |y g | 20000 ek sa mpurey | Bumad

e i puEaTy ENRIRIE B | AT fRidds Is..h““l m unjyenjeisy | piveneod | w¥nouam Whaein | wm wnpEasd | s prpdey
LR b e e Scdag iy Sijayl | SUSGRor | TosE e i m unpiepdy
Aamap Jp gy fynbg g pevondmes | eaes
TS P T 5
{supee) ap 3}

SZ-FZ0Z Jea) (el 2 dog Aynba sagin 1 O S10N

TRLIWTT JHOD AHN




39th Annual Report

AUEISIOaS Aoy

(Aspued) -y A)

_A

‘P17 didn Aay 1o

400 BNYL V A4 OL Q31410 88D

(1IN-teag snopaasyg ) 1y -sanued pajejal 01 sasueape pue sueo (3)

E90Z1 |ooo oo |o0'a EH:. EF0ET LYFEL 00'p 00’0 00’ 0oe LYYEL FUEOT [E0]
ES'DZT |o0a 000 (] (Y] ES'0ZT LOFPET (TR 0o’ 0a'o ooo LOFET 13n-(1) (gm0,
IUEMI|IE|
000 000 00'0 000 000 00'0 _ ss0]
- |00 000 000 [i]exe] n._.._l._: L jusuLeduw) (553
EY'DZL 000 00’0 000 00’0 £9°0Z1 LYVEL 000 ao 000 ooo LYVET
E9021 0o ] 1] 000 ES0ZT LYFET 00’0 () (R oo LYPET
LR (L] 00°0 LLER 000 0oo —...._3”. _n..._._n__ ooo 00'n ooo o0a
100D Mo 000 LR _un.n o0on 0o _na.m ooo 000 ] 000
E9'0ZT i]131} (00°0 00D _nn__.n E9'DZT LIPET oo ooa aoo 000 LOBET
oo 000 00’0 ooo 00'0 oo
E9'0ZE 000 000 LI 000 E9'0ZT LO'FEL 000 000 ooa 0o'n LIFET
E9°0ZT 00'g oo'a 00o 000 EFOZL LYHEL 0o ] 00D 0o LOPET
(x1)+ (o1
{e)=21)| +6+8=11) (o) {s) [g) () (5+1=9)| (i+£+z=5) (#) (€] (z) (1)
$50]
10 jgoad o AWOAN] 34 -_“M i AIWOIU] IA
inaap i jsnayaadmon 103y i jsuafadmoy
supe a0 Jgoad %00 ginoap| a0 ygoad
aegae| O ygngagy ponidndrs un._ WL ydnaayy
pajeniisag pajeudisa
[EoLl  [mogng anfmg Jje4 1y 1bad payjuowy moL|  (mogng anjep Jped 1y 1503 paspIomy
FEOT N TE ey SEOE Mrawjy 1 sy
suppeg g 2l SUENT] " 0N 310N
TO0B0Z AN INVI STINTT TIAIY V-OT/9T

(ALLINIT JHOD A5

47




WUMaDess Iuor

(Rapuirg ‘M °A)
Tt_,@
‘m duod) AO%| 1O

QLN JHOD ATH

AdO BOUML Y A0 OL ARTALYED
e e maniny Jail 1€ 1) 0 ,
0L b1 000 |e0 e ' OEnE o 1 oL 100 warnin oo [FI0ME (1 HLTRTS i PALGT .mwh.m.ﬂhn
[3) s=
imanedinl] oy
ALY |
0 0 i i 0 i 0 0 i J i 0 i 5]
)y Ay
» o1 (¥} el
9L 6519 DOEITE el 0 BRIE [T L 1ML (L] 000 0¥ E [ TRTFIE o ENNLET [
]
B 000 Tqms_m 0OEIIE oo 9L TO0E Jarss oad TEnteE B TEOHIE 0 0 0LGT sussnﬁamn
i
oL 61 000 ([00BRIE 00 DORITE on'il 0.0 100 HEOI9T M |TETHIE oD THOFIE o EOLET EEauEﬂ—
01019 000 [DOBRLE oo looBRiE leorn o T0E RIS ot |eEOreE Ha ZETTIE 0 [E0'BLAT SpAItL) P
IErielzr e T
B 1) €0 |yeode=n| OV (i1 4] (el (el aeenim=ta| @ i+ {EM[T)=(5) 64 (x} ik {11
PR FMIOOL] E50] 10
4 ARELOOA
AL et =60 S0y oud P ssopa0 qesd |aspsoatasdiseg
CEL ] yaacien ginouagy
oL SeEpn| oL -gng g yimeInL 3 0 PAsTLEY el Swmol  meL-ans |an ginom L L0 1500 pasyC
anjis ) e S e pef IF lna] ST S
pvndizag oyl o
anpEA aed 1y _anpea ged 1Y
o i 0 e CZ0Z P LE 1T 5
e o ) ST eI AT T ON SToN

48




39th Annual Report

- T T n

{Aspusd "M N)
...m..u..\“.an 07 A2 IO san apstl v 3 01 QALITLNED
E0'0LET SF0'0S6ZFLY [ELTE FIF'SIIZ6 |0 0000 0% TO0E BC¥SLESERD TYLOL GNYHD
100 TL6'¥S550% [00°D 0000 0 000°0 SED- TL6FSSS0F SANM4 1830/ anbi TVL0L
00'o TEY'DERSEL 0o'n 1E9°0EBSEE MO - Z-pajedaliag pung 3sty 31pai) Efpu] uoddiy
00’0 B9E'ESE 0oo B9E'ESE JuDID) ~-pajaaldag UE]4 SWOIU] UWiia ] L0lS E[pu] upjiely
000 000 000 o000'o MOJD) -Z-pajadeddes UE]d SWwl0ou] Ulla ], L0US EIpU] Ujpjuedy
oo 9ZH0 100 | B IMOJD - UE]d SUWIOIU] WA ] L0US BpU] ujpjuely
00’0 95 0Ly6e9T 000 Sh5'0LPEST MO0 -E-pajadalies pung Xsid JpadD Bjpu] Uipjaes]
aNnd 1834 / SaNnd aindi
LINA LINM LIND LINA
| TZOTETTENUEVIIRVIVE IVITINL NSNS | BV NI OTRTENG BVETETE FCVUTONO SV AINVIVE TR TYTLLITN 30 TRVH
(syE U )
00462 ¥LO'SEELEES [ELTE ¥1¥52926 |0 0000 SLTO0E LBYOZO0ERS annd gLLNIMo ALINDI /ALINDA TVi0L
66902 BO9TSSTAT 66902 BO9'TSET6T UIMOIT - puny de piw LN
67692 DBO'TZSZLL |00 ELOBITD EFILE Z51'6B69LT moig- pung deg Wa(d 11N
oo'os GOT LEETE 0005 ST'LEELR UImods - pung Buod 195
BEELT DBO'ASELOE 66'BLT 0BO'6SEL0E mean - puny de) [[ews 185
HADEE 672 T0F065 BEOEL 6T 10065 Masmoun - puny dig snig [gs
oo'ov TET'0TL68 0o 0F 161068 ymals -pund dej [[Bws DE5H
66'6EL 990’ L2 LF6 66BET 090 LTLEE MO~ pung diysanig HEioy
00’0 LTT BEESE o0y LZZ'BEBSY AMDID- pUny aN[EA Buljiais Ueypueg
00'ES 6055196 00°ES B05'STHE [IM01T) -puni] &) PIl 7 84487 [ENUapILg [J1D]
00'st BEL'SSEFE 00'st GET'SSEPE iMmodE -punyg de] [[ews [Epuapnld [D10]
op'as BELFIEYL 00as 864 FE6FL YIMOID- pung ded [pws DAaH
66611 SATBBAE6T BA'RLT CETBEEE6T LM0JD-pung Seapii 45a
66'SZ2 0Z5'FLSOBE 66'5EL 0Z5'¥L508E ymodn - pung de) [ews 450
0o'oF Z96'L9485T 000y 96’ LOLEIT yimoln -pung de) [[ews aoaqoy BIeUE)
BYESE BFESHSELE BY'ESE BFE GHSESE umaIn -pun Aynby BulSiawmy o3sqoy eletey
AF9LE BZO'9BEDGT 69LE AZ0'98EDET amoun ~pung de) [xa]d edaqoy BIFUE)
GFIve YBLIEI006 6% 9L +RL 921006 yamodn -punyg Ajnby diyaanig 03aqoy Bleue])
00'ET LAT 66109 00ez LBZBATOY UYImo.s -puny ded piy sy
11052 LO6'SEAVEDE 11052 LO6'SEAYEDT {amolg-puny sapjumaoddp Moy sixy
05’51 EEEF9ITLED 05’51 EEEHOTLEL UIMOID-PUny de) [Xafd suoy
£9°L ZIOTLR9Z  |ELVE LELS1RA LETE ESE'BZOSTT amoln-pung diyzanig spey
068k SotbebsE 06'RE Gab bodyez ‘puapiaig-pung djgoanig sy
QN4 QALNAMO ALIND3 JALInDa
LINN LIND LIND LINQ
_ IO EOTE RO SV IIEVTVE IVITINL ONTAMOSTTVE | AVEX I ORI IS FUVITO O SV IONVIVA ORI TV A0 IRVH
sUHe|uj 3
SN TVIIITN R TN WISTANT
FIONII0ON 0L TAXINRY

TILINIT 500 ATH

48




Lme nno LR
.....-»..w...._...n. o ) .— LETR N

(Aspued H N
o)
7 diod Ae) Jod

Ad3 HTHL WV 38 af T I T e

‘Aumduary
Jo R A Uy syasTe g ou ale i3y aead oap Bupmp [ 832550 Jo vam jo g E___?_S:EEE:EEEH_.EKE& 5] panEARL Jo0 S2y Suwdusog ayy,

Auedinng sip §o atren v Indinyy
pzsin 343 5 pasyayy | LBETARLI0 oN i, ey | svoLs S A | usudimby g kg fuadosg
saumuly pue Bujseaq Lin e bl ¥-9L91 1= pur]
e L LT LT T T T
joommusp oy ppy | saupppy TR 20 043P Jo 3w a4 o) (2) ampm 8w aaqy sxuEjeg
Sujaq 108 05 sunew3y “smomosd ws) 2appoy | ppayg paag apyL | Sepdiiy secus Jo nopdiaag | ¥ U ) dup umanay
Ausdosy | paspapp smians |

FETOZYAY sajuwdmos 3 o 11) [npats £q pasinbal asnsopEsp U pppY ,

P VT EE S0%E 0TS E5l AT STLB EFT ETt 5998 FaIAAL] 1o nopAaig ]
OZSE YEOE EZ ES 955 (T3] CITEE 5106 CI LO'OT ST'LH IVLO0Ll ONVH L |
SLINM ONTSS30064

GED 150 EFE aEg oo’ S0E YEE o0y o' ¥HE VIVO ¥ sHaLndmon] &
[F] (] SIE ] ] 0T SVE 00a i) . |6ZE INNdINhE 301330] 9
EEE ZEOL VEOL B BED [E2C CEETS A CEE CIR SAIDIHEAYOL0N] ©
(08D oo BTE g [ilE] 3 BL 6 [5] [ BL6 SONILLI % SHNLNAE]

2 ; : EPITEE
BI't EZ'1 £y 1z o % 99 arg gz 0g's SNOLYTIVISHI YO IEE] £
BETL BELL QL EL [ [ WLIT BUVE oo ] BOVE TMIGTINE
09 0La [ o0d ood B00 0L9 [i5 ooo (5] « (010K 3984) ANV T

It T ot & B z ] T ¥ E 3
FLOTEXTE STOTENTE SEOTENIE HYIA SINZWAsnioY| szoTEDTE STOEEIE SINEMLSniaY SINZMisniay| #Isrerio FLISEW
IV sy LV sy KO 5V TVLOL THL ¥Od FeaTve oLdn KO SV TWAOL /EaTHS JeNoLLIgay %O 5V 1503 ONTE
M08 L3N THOTLVIDAHa3a WID1H 5080 NOILdi¥O5a0
(stpyer U 3)

TSI e AErSE T L OR 2I0N
TOUE0Z SNVH SIRTTTAIT V=oT79%

TALINT 800 ATH

50




39th Annual Report

— ¥ in lakhs)
Tedal
3238 265
(R — i Son] Ssal—dasd] s :
I
16 Oiliee locmme:- (¥ in laichs)
Farncular Year ended March $1.02.2025 Vear emded 315t March, 2024
1) Diher pon-eperamny o (et of cxpemset |
{a] Mz Inrmme L] 04
(] Prafiy s= Sabs of Aosens 24 004
{£]) inceress Rove from Ioesme T 052 0.00)
Tl i fu}] 0.76 0.9
A% el Cane)” Oumgsl O o Wosker Chotmepcd
I Met gaiay oo} e Segmciy Se=w—es ol 5 fair walun
i [A] invesaem: m W ends of Sracds AT444
[T —
| 3336|
Vrrealised Hl.oa
Totsl Net gate. Tomms) om G wadwe chtng AT444
A Vessans i e cnar [T In lakhs
Fartostary ¥ear ended March 31032025
[ Exswe - Laof
| Tetal 1.20]
A2 Bopiayes bemdn ooy
P tiradary Year ended Mards 11 033825
T — FLET]
[t Contrémsme & Fuoien Fosd 152
el Pons f Ev-tree L.68
() Enmpowees Fmmss Fomi A
{e] Admisirmmes Eapesees & sswraece = PF, 018
1) 30 werifiare wbemme )
(R Provimes S Craesiry 153
| Bilerve Excpem.— L
|15) Wboddicat 3 epemmes LCH
Tiotad 40,92
Hey Masagrial Frrsesesd Lemssseration - (¥ im Lalkhs)
immmﬂm mﬂ;::“
¥
Pertiesiars 1 Dirsctinr] RN SInghi (CPO0) | (upinay
: ) 223 L15
(ther benefiss & H 1.4% naz B
Alliverssce
| Tomd [YT) 415 115
| Previos Yesr 647 374 LK
Hote: As ma s W babr Ery thee DH ¥ of the Compan) putatiog of net prodit u's 190 of the Companics Act 2013 has wot been
given.
T
Fartbculars Year emded J1nt March, 2024
[a) Conveyamse Expeme
[b) Power zod Furl
[} Rurtes & Tases exclwiing e on ikteme
[} Repairs to Machinery
(&) Insurance
() Ansditars’s Remmerarion
(¥} Stavuiory Asdiz Fee
0] Tam Asictit Fam
Note: During the Masacisl year 2024-T5, 2 ponalny of T !lﬂﬁhkl':tﬂ".\".!GJE]msmhuw“mmwﬁmU&mmmu‘:;nq
campliance of SEE| [LODIE) Requlations, 2015, P : T P,
CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE CO
v =
] L]
— &1

(V. Pandey)
Joint Secretary




ALEarning per Share ;-

Particulars

Net profit availaiie for equity sharcholders
including Othar Camprehensive Income)

Ket prafit availabla for oquity shareholdars
mmqmmmmmm
HNumber of equity shareg

{Used as Benominatar for EPs)

(1} Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share of * 10/ sach

Mmumwm Income]
[g]m-ubﬁmmwmu_ﬂ‘ 104~
each

mmngmmmmunﬁmﬂ
mhnﬂ-ﬂmnm the company

CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE Coey
For Key Cgrp Litd.

(V. K. PPandey)
Joint Secretary
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23 (a) The company follows the Reserve Bank of India guidelines applicable to Non Banking Financial Companies regarding
assets classification , provisioning and income recognition on non performing assets and accounting for

Investments.
(b) Information as required in terms of RBI Scale based Regulation (October, 2023)
Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an NBFC
{ Tin Lacs)
| Liabilities side Amount outstanding Amount overdue
Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of NIL NIL
interest accrued thereon but not paid:
S.NO. |(a) |Debentures: Secured NIL NIL
(1) “ : Unsecured NIL NIL
{other than fElling within the meaning of public NIL NIL
deposits*)
{bB] |Deferred Credits NIL NIL
(€] |Term Loans NIL NIL
(d} |Imter-corporate loans and borrowing NIL NIL
(e] |Commercial Paper NIL MIL
{f} |Public Deposits® NIL NIL
(g) |Cther Loans (specify nature) NIL NIL
* Please see Note 1 below
Break-up of (1}(f} above [Outstanding public
deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but
not paid):
(2} |lnthe form of Unsecured debhentures NIL NIL
(Z) |(b) |in the form of partly secured debentures Le. NIL
debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of]
SECHTitY NIL
() |Other peblic deposits NIL
* Please ses Note 1 below
Assets side Amount outstanding
Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) below]:
{a} |Secured
(3] |(b) |Uncecursd
Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other
assels counting towards asset ﬁnandngEﬂviﬁes
(I} |Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:
4] (a] Financial lease ' NIL
{b] Operating lease NIL
(if) |Stock en hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors:
(a]) Assets on hire NIL
(b) Repossessed Assets NIL
(iif) |Other loans counting towards asset financing
activities
(2] Loans where assets have been repossessed NIL
[b) Loans other than (a) above 134.67
Break-up of Investments
Current Investments e rpUuE COPY
T-lF ) F i
! CER t &4
- 55
(V. K. Pandey)

Joint Secratary




(5} 1 |[Quoted
(i) Shares
{a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
(iv]) Government Securities NIL
[v]) Others [please specify) NIL
2 |Unguoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity NIL
(b) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
{iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
(iv] Government Securities NIL
(v]) Others [please specify) NIL
Long Term investments
1 |Quoted
(i) Share
(a) Equity NIL
(b] Preference NIL
{ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL
(iii} Units of mutual funds GG610.84
(iv) Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL
2 |Unguoted
(i) Share
(a) Equity NIL
(k) Preference NIL
(i) Debentures and Bonds NIL
{iii) Units of mutual funds NIL
[iv] Government Securities NIL
(v) Others (please specify) NIL
(vi)
Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above: Please see Note 2 below
Category Amount net of provisions
i6) Secured Unsecured Total
1 |Related Parties **
(a]) Subsidiaries NIL NIL NIL
[b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL NIL
|(c) Other related parties NIL NIL NIL
? |Other than related parties 134.67 NIL 13467
Total 134.67 NIL 134.67
Investor group-wise classification of all investments [current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted): Please see Note 3 below
Market Value/
Category Break up or fair] Book Value (Netof Provisions)
value or NAV
(7 1 |Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries NIL NIL
(b) Companies in the same group NIL NIL
(c) Other related parties NIL NIL
2 |Other than related parties 661084 2970.03
Total 6610.84 2970.03
** As per Accounting Standards of ICAI (Please see Note 3)

CERTIFIED T0 BE A TRUE LUFL

5 FOr Koy Corp L.

(V. H. Panday)

Joint Sewrret o e,
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Other information { Tin Lacs)
Particulars Amount
(8) |} |Gross Non-Performing Assefs
(a) Related parties NIL
(b) Other than related parties NIL NIL
{if) |Net Non-Perforining Assets
{a) Related parties NIL
[b) Other than related parties NIL NIL
(i} |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL NIL
MNotes:
1 4As defined in paragraph 5.1.26 of the Directions.
2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions
3 Al nptified Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation of
invesimens and other assels as also assets acquired in satisfuction of debt However, market value in respect of]
quoted Investments and break up/ fair value/ NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective
of whether they are classified as long term (amortised cost in the case of Ind AS) or current (fair value in the case of|
Ind AS) im {5} sbove.
24 In the Bnancial year 2024-25 the Company has operated in only one business segment, hence, compliance of Ind AS-
108 regarding "Operating Segments” is not applicable.
25
[ % in Lacs)
A) Particulars 2024-25 | 202324 ]
Iz Respectof
m!h‘ of Services
1 _[Shri Madan Maheshwari 2.07 1.86
Total 2.07 1.86
Key Managerial Remuneration
1 G0, Maheshwari 6.85 6.07
2 |Sari RNSingh 415 3.75
3 |Smt Namrats Shukla {upto 10.08.2024) 0.36 120
£ |Shn Daya Nath Mishra (w.ef 10.08.2024) 115 0.00
Total 12.51 11.02]
Grand Total 14.58 1Z.88
B) |Subsidiaries There is no subsidiary of the company
€]  |Promotsr Director |Dr. KB.Agarwal |
D)}  |Eey Mamagement Personel Shri G.D.Maheshwari |
Shri Daya Nath Mishra (w.e£10.08.2024)
Smt Namrata Shukla (upto 10.08.2024)
Shri RN.Singh i
E)

Relative of Promoter Director & Key Management Personel

{Mr.Madan Maheshward (Brother of
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26. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liability not provided for

Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debt

(2024-25)
T Nil

(2023-24)
Z Nil

27. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the company’s statement of Profit and
Loss depicts a profit after tax of ¥ 431.84 lakhs which includes a surplus on measurement of
‘assets [ liabilities at fair value of T 441.08 lakhs in accordance with the requirements of Ind
As. As per extant guidelines for the purposes of calculation of Net Profit for Corporate Social
Responsibility contribution as per Section 198 of the Act, the said amount of T T 441.08 lakhs
pertaining to surplus on measurement of assets/liabilities at fair value is not to be
considered. Accordingly, the net profit after tax of the company for the purposes of Corporate
Social Responsibility is below ¥ 5 Crores consequently the provision of Section 135 of the Act,
is not applicable on the company. Further, for the purpose of calculating provision for tax this
amount has also not been considered as per past practice.

28. The company does not have any stress loan which requires to be transferred or acquired
during the year ended 31 March, 2025, hence relevant disclosures have not been made.

29. As required by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the financial ratios for the year
ended 31% March, 2025, are as follows:

Serial No. | Name of the Ratios Ratio (%)| Ratio (%)
for C.Y. for P.Y.
1. Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) 129.86 133.34
& Tier I CRAR 128.11 132.09
3. Tier 11 CRAR 1.25 1.25
4, Liquidity Coverage Ratio *Refer Note below

*As per Reserve Bank of India Circular No. RBI/2019-20/88 DORNBFC (PD) CC.No.
102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 04.11.2019 Liquidity Coverage ratio is not applicable to
company as it is non deposit taking company of which asset size is below ¥ 5000 Crores nor it

is a Core Investment Company Type-1 NBFC-NDs, Non Operating Financial Holding Company
and Standalone Primary Dealer.

30. The figures in rupees have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs unless otherwise stated.

31, Previous year's figures have been regrouped, re-arranged and re-stated wherever
necessary to conform to the figures of the current year.

32. Additional Regulatory Information

(i) No Benami Property is held by the Company as defined under the Benami Transaction
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(ii) Company have not taken any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis ¢

security of current assets during the year. CHRTFIED TO.BE A TRUB COPY
For ‘Eey &Erp Lid.

-t "
ol

58

(V. KIPandew)
Joint Secrator.



39th Annual Report

(i) Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(iv) Company has not done any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(v) Company has no charge which is required to be registered with the Registrar of Companies.

(wvi) Number of layers prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 from the date of their
implementation is not applicable on the company.

{vii) No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(viii) The Company is a NBFC. Further, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities, other than those given in the ordinary
course of business.

(ix) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities during the Financial Year.

(%) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

{xi) Company has not done any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961
(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).

33. Corporate Information

KEY CORP Limited (the Company]) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited. The Company
is primarily engaged in the business of financing, particularly in old vehicle finance and investment
of surplus funds in mutual funds. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
and Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The registration details are as follows:

RBI B-12.00414

Corporate ldentity Number | L65921UP1985PLC007547
(CIN)

The registered office of the Company is 16/16-A, CIVIL LINES, KANPUR-208001.
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31= March, 2025 were approved for
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 13.05.2025.
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34 i
(1) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the application of fair
value measurements required or allowed by relevant Accounting Standards. Accounting
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented. unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are based on management
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements,
which may differ from the actual results ata subsequent date.

(i) Presentation of financial statement

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule 111 (Division I11) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time) applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event and the
parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business
ii. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and /or its counterparties
(iii) Financial instruments: -

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another.

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
investments insecurities and other eligible current and noncurrent assets.

Financial liabilities include long term and short-term loans and borrowings, trade and
other payables and other eligible current and noncurrent liabilities.

[nitial recognition of all financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value or
amortized cost as appropriate.

Financial assets are subsequently classified into the following three categories

CERTIFIED TOQ BE A TRUE COPY
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based on review at the end of each reporting period on the basis of either
company’s business model for managing the financial assets or contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets:
» Financial assets at amortized cost.
»# Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
» Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.
Financial liabilities are subsequently classified into the following two
categories based on review at the end of each reporting period:
# Financial liabilities at amortized cost
¥ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial assets are de-recognized when either the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset has expired or when the company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party and either {a) the company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. On de-recognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that have been recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income, is recognized in profit and loss.

The Company assesses the impairment/write-off of financial assets on a forward-
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortized cost and at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income. The
company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the company
has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a
portion thereof. This is generally the case when the company determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries
against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss. With regard to
recognition of Estimated Credit Loss (ECL) to provide for impairment losses the same
is applied using the simplified approach as permitted by IND AS 109 “Financial
Instruments”, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from the
initial recognition of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are de-recognized when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expire.

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
cheques on hand and balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-
term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short- term deposits, as defined above. CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE COPY
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(v) Broperty, plant and equipment

Items of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price,
freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to the cost for
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the management. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by
changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and trested as changes in
accounting estimates.

Expenditure related to an item of tangible assets are added to its £ross valee only if it increases
the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previcesly assessed standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably, Other rEpairs aad maintenance costs are
treated as expenses as and when incurred.

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon dispossl or whes =0 future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising om cerscognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds zng e carTying amount of the
asset] is recognized as other income / expense in the statemens of profit and loss in the year
when the asset is derecognized.

(vi) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (PPE) is caliceliasted wsing the straight-line
method based on useful life as specified in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of progerty, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectiesiy.  appropriate.

(vii) Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognized only when its cost can be measurec reliably and it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributaile & & will fow to the Company.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial Feca@mstion 3¢ cOSt

(viii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet fate 50 secertsin if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal/external factors As mparment loss is recognized
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoversbis smeees The recoverable amount
is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use '

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are takes e account, if available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation medel used After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assst ower its remaining useful life.

(ix) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the enterprise has a present chilgason (legal or constructive) as

a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resserces embodying economic |

benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and 2 relisbie sstmste can be made of the

amount of the obligation. CERTIFIED 70 BE A TRUE COPY
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The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.
(x) Revenue Recognition

(a) All income and expenses are accounted for on accrual basis, except otherwise stated.

Interest Income
[Itr'!]terest income is recognized by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as
measured at Fair Value through Profit & loss account (FVTPL).
The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed:
i, As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. :
ii. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows.
iii. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
offective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.
Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognized in interest

income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

(¢) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized

a, When the right to receive the payment is established,

b. itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
¢ the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably

(d) Fees & Commission Income
Fees and commissions are recognized when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at

fair value of the consideration received or receivable, unless included in the effective interest
calculation.

(e) i

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit
or loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognized as an unrealized gain / loss. In
cases where there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognized in “Net gains on fair value
changes "under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under
“Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realized gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt
instruments measured at FVOCI is recognized in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

(f) The Company has followed the prudential norms for income recognition and provisioning for
non-performing assets as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for Non-Banking Financial
Companies.

(i) E
(a)

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid

annual leave which is accounted for as per Service Rules and charged to the _Statpsn,qnt of Profit &
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Loss account. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized as an expense during the period.
Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognized
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(b)post-

(a) Provisions for Retirement benefits for Gratuity are made as per The Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972,

(b)Contribution to Provident Fund is recognized when due.

(xii) Taxation

Tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in statement of
profit & loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the comprehensive income or
in equity in which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

(a) Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted. by the reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recosnized ocutside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax S=ms are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in 0CJ or directly in equity. Masagement periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations &= which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where soprooriate.

(b] Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences arsne between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred imcosse sy is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reperting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realizes or the Seferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognized for temporary differences, umesed s losses and unused tax
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilizs Shose temporary differences
and losses, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date as 2= reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is 2 legaly esfrceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes leyies oy e same tax authority on
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend s seese curvent tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are rezlized cemuitoseoesly,

Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring espemses are recognized net of
the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

(i) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services i Dot recoweralble from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of scgusicon of the asset or as

art of the expense item, as applicable. >
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(ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. The net amount of
tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

(xiii) Earnings per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on
Earnings per share.

(xiv)
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond

In terms of our separate report For and on behalf of Key Corp Limited

Of even date attached CIN: L65921UP1985PLC007547

For V.P. ADITYA & CO. K.B. Agarwal G.D. Maheshwari

Chartered Accountants (DIN: 00339934) (DIN: 00235209)
(FRN: 000542C) Chairman Executive Director

(CA SURENDRA KAKKAR) Daya Nath Mishra R.N. Singh

Partner (C.P.No.F2656) Chief Financial Officer

M. No: 071912 Company Secretary

Place: Kanpur

Date: 13.05.2025
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KEY CORP LIMITED

16/16-A, Civil Lines, Kanpur - 208 001
CIN-L65921 UP1985 PLCO07547
e-mail : keycorplid@gmail.com

FLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

a 8604627809

Jolnt sharahoiders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the mealing

DR ID* {Fotio M.
Chant |d* |Nn.ul' Shargs

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER

| heraby record my prasence at the 39th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company hald on Tuesday, July 15, 2025 at 10.00 a.m.
at the Registerd office of the company at 16/18A CIVIL LINES KANPUR

*Applicable for invertors holding sharss in electronic form. “Signature of Shareholder proxy

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 10560 the Companias
ACT, 2013 and rule 18(3) of the Companias
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

KEY CORP LIMITED

CiN ¢ LESS21UP1885PLCOOTE4T
1681164, CIVIL LINES

KANPUR-208001
Name of the member{s): g-mail Id
Reglistered Office: Falio Ma*Ciant id;

*DF id:

I"We,boing the mambar(s) of shares of Key Corp Limited hereby appoint:
1) of having e-mail id or failing him
2) of having e-mail i of failing him
3} of having e-mail id

and whose signalura(s) are sppended below as mylour proxy to attend and vots (on & poll) for mefus and on myfour Ganaral Meegting of the

Company to be held an Tuesday 15th July 2025 af 10.00am at the Rugisterd office of the company &t 168/164 Clvil Linas Kanpur-208001
and at my adjeurnment there of in respect of such resciutions as are indicated balow:

"I wish my above Proxy to vole In the manner as indicated in the box bedow:
[ Resolutiona For Against
Ordinary Business | | [

i, | Adaption of Financial Statements, for the year ended 318t March, 2025
2. | Appointmant of Or. Mukul Agarwal who retires by ratation

3. | Appointment of Audiars and fixing their remunaration

Special Business / Special Resolution

4. | Appeintment of Ms Lavisha Agarwal s an Independent Vomen Director
5. | Re-appoiniment of Shri 5.0, Maheshwari as a Whale Time Director

Signed this day of 2025

| Signature of shareholdar
| Sigatire of first praxy holder Sigature of secand proxy holder Sigature of thind proxy holder

MNotos:

1 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Regletered Office of the Company
not loss than 48 hours befors the commencemaent of the mea

2 A Proxy need not be member of the Company.
3 A perzon can acl aproxy on behalf of members nol exceeding fifty

and helding In the aggregate not mare than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A mamber halding mare than 10% of the (otal shara capital of the Company
carrying voling rights may appoint a single PBrEOn a8 proxy and such person shall not act & proxy for any other person or shereholder.

"4 This |3 enly optional. Please pul a % In the appropriats column agains! the resolutions indicated in the BoxIf you leave the For or

‘Against’ column blank agalnst any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled 1o vole in the manner as helshe thinks sppropriate,
5 Appointing & proxy does not prevent member from attending the mesting In parson if he so wishes,
& In the case of jointhalders, the signature of any ono holder will be sufficient, but name of all the |
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